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30TH ANNUAL REPORT
2022-23

NOTICE

MNotice is hereby given that the THIRTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members of KAISER
CORPORATION LIMITED will be held on Friday the 15" September 2023 at 11.00 a.m. through the
Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OVAM) to transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1.  Toreceive, consider and adopt:

a. The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the company for the financial year ended 317
March, 2023 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and

b. The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the company for the financial year ended 317
March 2023 together with the reports of the Auditors thereon

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Bhushanlal Arora as the Executive Director of the Company.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 152 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 to appoint a Director in place of Mr. Bhushanlal Arora (DIN No. 00416032) who
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself forre-appointment”.

By order of the Board
For KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED

Bhushanlal Arora
Managing Director
Place: Mumbai
Date :17"July 2023

REGISTERED OFFICE:

Unit No 283-287 F wing ,

2" floor, Solaris -l SakiVihar Road,
Andheri (E), Mumbai 400072
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NOTES:

1 . The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") inter-alia vide its General Circular Nos. 14/ 2020 dated April
8, 2020 and 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, followed by General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020,
and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022
(collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars™) has permitted the holding of the annual general meeting
through Video Conferencing ("VC™) or through other audio-visual means ("OAVM?), without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue.

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™) and MCA Circulars, the 30th Annual
General Meeting ("Meeting” or "AGM") of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM on Friday,
September 15, 2023, at 11:00 a.m. (IST). The proceedings of the AGM deemed to be conducted at the
Registered Office of the Company situated at Unit No 283-287, “F" Wing 2 nd Floor, Solaris—I, Saki Vihar
Road, Andheri(East), Mumbai-400072.

2. AMEMBER ENTITLED TOATTEND AND VOTE AT THEAGM IS ENTITLED TOAPPOINT APROXY
TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to MCA Circulars through
VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with in line with the MCA Circulars and
SEBI Circulars. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available
for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Motice. However,
Body Corporates are entitlted to appoint authorized representatives to attend the AGM through
VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting; however they are required to
send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board Resolution authorizing their representative to
attend the AGM as stated above. The deemed venue for the 30" Annual General Meeting shall be the
Registered Office of the Company.

Pursuant to SEBI Listing Regulations and as per Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings , a profile of
the Directors who are proposed to appointed/ re-appointed is set out in the Explanatory Statement.

The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from 9" September, 2023 to 15" September,
2023 both days inclusive (Book Closure Date) for the purpose of 30" Annual General Meeting.

In compliance with the various MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, the Notice of AGM is being sent only
through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/Depositories and with the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company. Members may note
that the Notice of AGM and the Annual Report 2023will also be available on the Company’s website at
www.kaiserpress.com and website of the Stock Exchange www.bseindia.com and on the website of the
CDSL www.evotingindia.com unless the Members have requested for a physical copy ofthe same.

Attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

For registration of email id for obtaining Annual Report and e-voting and User ID/password updation of
bank account mandates is annexed to this Notice use the link http://www.purvashare_.com/email

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS
UNDER:

Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the Meeting through VG/OAVM through the CDSL e-
voting system. Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under
Shareholders/Members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be
available in Shareholders/members login where the EVSN of the Company will be displayed

Members who do not have the User ID and Password for E-voting or have forgotten the User ID and
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Password may retrieve the same by following the remote E-voting instructions mentioned in the Notice.
Further Members can also use the OTP based login for logging into the E-voting system of CDSL.

Facility of joining the AGM through VC/OAVM shall open 15 (fifteen ) minutes before the time scheduled
for the AGM and will be available for Members on first come first served basis and the Company may
close the window for joining the VC/OAVM Facility 15 (fifteen) minutes after the scheduled time to start
the AGM.

Members may note that the VC/OAVM Facility allows participation of at least 1,000 Members on a first
come first served basis. The large shareholders (i.e. shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee,
Auditors, etc. can attend the 30th AGM without any restriction on account of first-come-first-served
principle.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / | Pads for better experience.

Further Shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the Meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Members who need assistance before or during the AGM can contact CDSL (CDSL details).

Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their
name, DP ID and Client ID / folio number, PAN, mobile number at compliancekaiser@gmail.com upto 10"
September 2023. Those members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to
express their views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the
number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

The Members are reguested to notify any change in their registered address / residential status
immediately to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents; M/S. Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd.,
(hereinafter referred to as “Purva”) Unit No. 9, Shiv Shakti Indl. Estate, J.R. Boricha Marg, Off N. M. Joshi
Marg, Near Lodha Excelus, Lower Parel (E), Mumbai - 400 011. In case of Dematenalized Shares, the
aforesaid information should be given to the Depository Participant with whom the Member has an
account.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic
form are therefore requested to submit their PAN to the Depository Participants with whom they maintain
their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form should submit their PAN to the Registrar
and Transfer Agent/ Company.

Members may note that the Rule 11 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; permits circulation of
Annual Report to shareholders through electronic means to such of the Members whose e-mail
addresses are registered with NSDL or CDSL or the shareholders who have registered their E-mail 1D
with the Company and physical copies to those shareholders whose e-mail IDs have not been either
registered with the Company or with the depositories, if requested by them.

Keeping in view the Green Initiative taken by the Government and to save the cost involved in printing
and dispatch; Members are requested to register their e-mail addresses with the DPs, in case shares are
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held in dematerialized form and with Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvi. Lid in case the shares are held in
physical form and also intimate changes, if any, in their registered e-mail addresses to the Company /
DPs, from time to time.

Please note that as a Member of the Company, you will always be entitled to receive all communications
in Physical form, upon request.

SEBI through its circular dated December 3, 2018; has instructed that the securities of the Listed
Companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form from April 1, 2019. In view of the above and to
avail various benefits of dematenalization, Members are advised to dematerialize shares held by them in
physical form.

Members holding shares in physical form; under single name are advised to make nomination in respect
of their shareholding in the Company. The Nomination Form SH-13 prescribed by the Government can
be obtained from the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. Further, Members desirous of
cancelling/varying nomination are requested to send their requests in Form No. SH-14, to Purva
Sharerigstry. These forms will be made available on request.

In case of joint holders attending the Annual General Meeting, the Member whose name appears as the
first holder in the order of names as per The Register of Members of the company will be entitled to vote at
the AGM.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory statement shall be open for
inspectionattheRegistered Officeof the Company during normal business hours (10:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M.)
on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays, up to and including the date of the 30"
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed
thereunder, as amended from time to time and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; the Members are provided with the facility to cast their
vote electronically, through the e-voting services provided by CDSL on all the resolutions set forth in this
Motice. All Shareholders holding Shares as on 8" September, 2023 being the cut-off date [i.e.record date
for the purpose of Rule 20(2)(ii) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2015] fixed
for determining voting rights of Members will be entitted to participate in E-voting process. The
instructions for e-voting are given here in below. Resolution(s) passed by Members through e-voting are
deemed to have been passed as if they have been passed at the 30" AGM.

The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited ("CDSL") to
provide e-voting facility to the Members.

The Board vide its Resolution passed on 17" July, 2023 had appointed Mr. G.S. Jambekar Practicing
Company Secretaries (Membership No. FCS 1569 CP NO. 3735) as the Scrutinizer for conducting the
remote E-voting and Ballot form process in accordance with the law and in a fair and transparent manner.

The Chairman shall, after the conclusion of the discussion(s) on the resolutions on which voting is to be
held at the 30th AGM, shall allow voting with the assistance of the scrutinizer.

Members participating at the AGM, who have not already cast their vote on the Resolutions through
remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, will be eligible to exercise their right to vote
during such proceedings of the AGM. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to
the AGM may also attend/participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM, but shall not be entitled to cast their
vote again.

Members may contact Mrs Jinal Patani Company Secretary Cum Compliance Officer of the Company
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for any grievances connected with electronic means at the Registered office of the Company i.e. at 283-
287, F wing, 2™ floor, Solaris-1, Saki Vihar Road, Andheri(E), Mumbai-400072.

The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of the voting at the 30" AGM, first count the votes cast at the
meeting and then unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting. In the presence of atleast two
witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make not later than 48 hours of the
conclusion of the 30"AGM as envisaged under Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015; a
consolidated Scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairperson of
Company/Meeting in writing, who shall counter sign the same and declare the results of the voting forth
with. The results declared with the Scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the website of the Company and
will be uploaded on the BSE Limited.

Members who are holding shares in physical form or who have not registered their email address with the
Company/Depository or any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the
Company after the Notice has been sent electronically by the Company, and holds shares as on the cut-
off date i.e., 8" September 2023; such Member may obtain the UserlD and password by sending a
request at helpdesk.evoting@ecdslindia.com or support@purvashare/com However if a Member is
already registered with CDSL for e-voting then existing User ID and password can be used for casting
vote.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM and if the
same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OQOAVM facility, then the votes castby
such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available
only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESSAND MANNER FOR MEMBERS OPTING FOR E-VOTING

The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:-

The voting period begins at 9.00 a.m. on 12" September, 2023 and ends at 5.00 p.m. on 14" September,
2023. During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 08" September, 2023 may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. The shareholders
who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

(i) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to
its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions. However, it has been observed that
the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible
level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user
IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register
again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing
ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:
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Type of
share
holders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
Demat mode
with CDSL

1)

2)

3)

4)

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through
their existing userid and password. Option will be made available to reach
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to
login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New
System Myeasi.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as
per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option,
the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL
so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers' website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi / Easiest, option to register is available
at hitps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/Easi Registration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL

1)

2)

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://leservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 'IDeAS'
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and
you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at hitps://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for
IDeAS “Portal or click at
hitps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp
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3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
'‘Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User |D (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
Shareholders through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
(holding Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
securities in option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
demat mode) NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you
login through can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service

their provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining

Depository virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Participants

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in
securities in Demat mode with login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
CDSL sending a request at

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
or contact at 022 - 23058738 and 22-

23058542-43.
Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in
securities in Demat mode with login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
NSDL sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or
call attoll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and
18002244 30

Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual
shareholders holding in Demat form & physical shareholders.

(i) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the
voting period.

(ii) Click on“Shareholders” tab.
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(iii) Now, select the “Kaiser Corporation Limited * from the drop down menu and click on
“SUBMIT".

(iv)  Now, EnteryourUserlD.

a.
b.
C.

(v)
(vi)

(vii)

For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

For NSDL: 8 Character DPID followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,

Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with
the Company.

MNext enter the Image Verification code/Captcha code as displayed and Click on Login.
If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and
cast your vote earlier for EVSN of any Company, then your existing password is to be

used.

If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

PAN

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form Enter your 10
digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for
both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the the sequence number in their PAN Field
sent by RTA or contact RTA.

DOB

Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account maintained with the
DP of CDSL or with the company records for the said demat account or folio in
dd/mm/yyyy format.

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(i)

(xii)

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT" tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Companys election
screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password
Creation' menu where in they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the
new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders
for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided
that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on
the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant Kaiser Corporation Limited on which you choose to
vote.

On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same
the option *YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or No as desired. The option YES
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.
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(xiii) Click onthe "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A
confirmation box will bedisplayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK”, else to
change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

(3¢wi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print”
option on the Voting page.

(wii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then enter the UserlD and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by
the system.

(wviii) MNote for Institutional Shareholders

Institutional shareholders (i.e.other than Individuals, HUF, and NRI etc.) are required to
log on to https://www.evotingindia.co.in and register themselves as Corporate.

Ascanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should
be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

After receiving the login details they have to create compliance user using the admin
login and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which
they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

Ascanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system
for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can be
downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while
Remote Voting on your mobile.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting System, you
may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs") and e- voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com,under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor
contacton (022-23058738) or contact on (022-23058543) or contact on (022-23058542).

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr.
Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL,) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor,
Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai-400013 or
send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor call on 022-23058542/43.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-
VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE :

9 KAISER CORFORATION



KAISER CORPORATION LTD. THIRTIETH ANMUAL REPORT 2022-2023

2

For Physical shareholders - please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
email to Company/RTA email id.

For Demat shareholders - please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit
beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 digit DPID + CLID), Name, client master or copy of
Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to Company/RTA email id.

Other Instructions:

1.

The e-voting period commences only at 9.00 a.m.on 12" September, 2023 and ends at 5.00
p.m.on 14" September 2023. During this period, members of the Company, holding shares
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 8" September, 2023, may cast their
vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once
the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to
change it subsequently.

The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date 8" September, 2023.

Mr. G S Jambekar Practicing Company Secretary has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall, within a period not exceeding two working days from the conclusion of the
e-voting period, unblock the votes in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the
employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or
against, if any, forthwith to the Chairperson of the Company.

A member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through e-voting or by Ballot. If a
member casts votes by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and Ballot
shall be treated as invalid.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to
Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing,
25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East),
Mumbai — 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-
23058542/43

By order of the Board

For KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED
Bhushanlal Arora
Managing Director

Place: Mumbai

Date: 12" July 2023
REGISTERED OFFICE:
UnitNo 283-287, “F" Wing

2™ Floor, Solaris—I,

SakiVihar Road, Andheri(East),
Mumbai-400072.
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Details of the Directors seeking Appointment/Reappointment at the Annual
General Meeting as per the Listing Agreement

NAME Mr. Bhushanlal Arora
Date of Birth 05/11/1953

Date of Appointment 01/07/2015
Qualification B.com Inter CA

Mr. Bhushanlal Arora, Managing Director, Aged
70, is a Graduate in Commerce and has
qualified C.A. Intermediate in 1976. He has
Brief Profile worked as a Financial Manager of Parsiana
Publications Pvt Ltd during 1983 -1993. He has
been associated with printing industry for more
than 40 years

Kaiser-E-Hind Pvt Lid, Kaiser Arts Pvt Lid,

Direcionship hed In ofher companies Parsiana Publications Pvt Ltd and Podskape

Media Pvt Lid.
Membership of commitlees across B
companies
Shares held Nil

Relationship Between the Directors There is no relationship with other Directors.
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DIRECTOR'SREPORT
Ta

The Members

Kaiser Corporation Limited
Mumbai

Your Directors’ are pleased to present the Thirtieth Annual Report of your Company with
the Consolidated Audited Accounts for the year ended March 31,2023,

FINANCIALRESULTS: (Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Sales Income 1884.73 3304.89
Other income 153.54 15.66
Total Income 2038.27 3320.55
Expenditure:

Finance costs 111.82 90.25
Depreciation and amortization expenses 20.40 20.64
Profit before non-controlling i [

profit/(loss) of associate i =l A
Share of profit/(loss) of associate 0.00 00
Profit/{loss) before tax 57.30 141.45
Current tax 10.24 43.98
Current tax(MAT) 0 0
MAT credit entitlement 0 0
Deferred tax charge 21.80 {0.78)
Tax adjustment of earlier years 0.67 0.41
Mat credit -0.72 0
Profit/(loss)after tax [A] 25.31 97.85
Other comprehensive income/(loss)for the year . 3.61 {(1.71)
Total comprehensive income/(loss)for the year(A+E) 28.92 96.13
Total comprehensive income/(loss)attributable to:

Owners of the Parent 15.76 53.61
Non-controlling interests 13.16 42 53
Of the Total Comprehensive income/(loss) included

above, Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Parent 13.76 54.89
Mon-controlling interests 11.55 42.95
Of the Total Comprehensive income/{loss) included

above, Other comprehensive income/(loss)

attributable to:

Owners of the Parent 2.00 (1.29)
Mon-controlling interests 1.62 (0.43)
Earnings per equity share: (no annualised)

Basic and diluted (in Rs.) 0.03 0.10
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CONSOLIDATED:

Your Company's consolidated total income was to the tune of Rs.2038.27 lakhs compared to the
consolidated income of Rs.3320.55 lakhs for the previous year with the net profit of Rs.25.31 lakhs
compared to the net Profit of Rs.97.85 lakhs for the previous year. The Turnover and the profitability has
decreased as compared to the previous year on account of reduction in the business transactions
coupled with the adverse Government policies in the sector in which your company operates, however
your Directors are confident that the company will be able to generate higher turnover and the higher
Profitability in the current year compared to the previous year. Your Directors are taking corrective steps
to increase the business activities with the control over the expenses and trying to increase its products in
the current year.

STANDALONE:

The standalone total income was to the tune of Rs.58.75 lakhs compared to the standalone income of Rs.
59.14 lakhs for the previous year which has been increased marginally.

Your company with its subsidiary is presently in the business of Compounding for Trunkey project
management, engineering services and printing of labels, packaging materials, Magazines and articles of
stationery, however its printing business is not giving any proper results and hence your Directors have
already taken corrective steps and has been already concentrating its other lucrative business activities like
Turnkey projects.

DIVIDEND:

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2023,

QUALITY INITIATIVES

The Company continues to strengthen its commitment to the highest levels of quality, superior customer
experience, best-in-class service management, robust information security and privacy practices and mature
business continuity management.

The relevance of Kaiser " integrated Quality Management System (iQMS™) is continually evaluated for new
service offerings, emerging delivery methodologies, industry best practices and latest technologies, and
adequately upgraded to provide outstanding value and experience to its customers.

DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account of principal or
interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUT GO :

The particulars required to be stated as per the provisions of Section134 (3) (m) of The Companies Act, 2013
relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption do not apply to your Company.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
Foreign Exchange Earnings: NIL

Foreign Exchange Out go: NIL

DEPOSITORY SYSTEM:

Details of the Depository System are given in the section "Additional Information' which forms a part of the
Corporate Governance Report and is attached with the Annual Accounts.
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DIRECTORS:

As per the provisions of Section 152 of The Companies Act 2013 Mr. Bhushanlal Desraj Arora retires by
rotation and being eligible for appointment offers himself for re-appointment.

All the Independent Directors of the Company comply with the requirements as stated in the Companies Act,
2013 in regard to their appointment.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE AND PERFORMANCE OF ITS COMMITTEES AND
OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its
own performance, Board committees and individual Directors.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the
basis of criteria such as the board compaosition and structure effectiveness of Board process, participation
in the long-term strategic planning, information, functioning etc.

The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking in puts from the Committee
members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of Committee
meetings, efc.

The Board reviewed the performance of the Individual Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the
contribution of the Individual Director to the Board and committee meetings, preparedness on the issues
to be discussed, meaning full and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In addition, the
Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role by other Board members.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was convened in the month of January, 2023 to discuss the
following aspects:

i. Review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

ii. Review the performance of the Chair person of the Company, taking into account the views of
Executive and Mon-Executive Directors;

ii. Assess the quality, quantity and time lines off low of information between the Company's
Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform
their duties.

All Independent Directors were present at the Meeting and discussed the above and expressed their satisfaction.
COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings.

TRAINING AND HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT:

Morale of our professionals continued to be high. The Company continues to put concerted efforts in
recruiting quality people. Development and training programs are under taken were key focus is being
given to are as being employee development, growth and satisfaction along with employee relations
during the year. The relationship between management and employees continues to be one of mutual
respect, appreciation and cordial.
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AUDITORS:

The Auditors M/S Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP (Firm Registration No. 109420W) Chartered
Accountants has been appointed at the 28" Annual General Meeting of the company held on 30"
September 2021 for the period of five years.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, Mr. GS Jambekar, Practicing Company
Secretary, have been appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company. Their report is annexed as Annexure
Il to this Report. There port is self- explanatory and does not call for any further comments,

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by Mr. G.5 Jambekar,
Practicing Company Secretary in his Secretarial Audit Report dated 30" May 2023 on the Secretarial and
other related records of the company for Financial Year 2022-23.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS:

No significant and material orders were passed by there gulatorsor the court so tribunals that may have
an imp act on the going concern status and Company’s operations in for useable future.

ANNUAL RETURN:

The Annual Return for FY 2023 is available on the website of the Company at
hitps:/fwww.kaiserpress.com/cms/3/Investor-Relation

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Based on the frame work of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the Internal, Statutory, and Secretarial Auditors and
External consultant(s) and their views performed by management and the relevant Board commitiees,
including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company's internal financial controls
were adequate and effective during the financial year 2022-23.

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge
and ability, confirm that:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

They have selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company at the end of the financially ear and of the loss of the Company for that period;

(b) They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safe guarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

fc} They have prepared the annual accounts on a “going concern basis™,

id) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(g) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

153 KAISER CORPORATION



KAISER CORPORATION LTD. THIRTIETH ANMUAL REPORT 2022-2023

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS:

During the reporting period , your Company has not given any loans, however as far as the corporate
guarantee and any investments , the same has been disclosed in the Audited Financial Statement of
the company.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Company had only one Subsidiary as on 31 March 2023 and there has been no material change in the
nature of the business of the subsidiary. There are no associates or joint venture companies within the
meaning of Section 2(6) of The Companies Act, 2013 (Act).

The consolidated financial statements of the company and its subsidiary are prepared in accordance with
the accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, forms part of the Annual
Report and are reflected in the consolidated financial statements of the company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the company, consolidated
financial statements along with relevant documents and separate audited accounts in respect of its
Subsidiary is available on the website of the company.

The annual accounts of its Subsidiary and related detailed information will be kept at the registered
office of the company, as also at the registered office of the respective subsidiary company and will be
available to Investors seeking information at anytime.

A report on the performance and financial position of the subsidiary in AOC-1 is annexed to the report
under Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 as per annexure °'.

BOARD MEETINGS AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

1. Six (6) Board meetings were held during the year. The details of the Board meetings and the
attendance of the Directors are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

2.  Four (4) Audit Committee meetings were held during the year. The details of the Audit Committee
meetings and the attendance of the Directors are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

3. One (1) Nomination & Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the year. The details of
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee meetings and the attendance of the Directors are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

4. Four (4) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee meetings were held during the year. The details of
the Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings and the attendance of the Directors are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All related party transactions entered in to during the financial year were on an arm's length basis, in
the ordinary course of business and were incompliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and
the Listing Agreement. The details of the transactions with related parties are provided in the ac
companying financial statements.

There were no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company during the year
that would have required members approval under Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), 2015.The policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing
with related party transactions has been already approved by the Board.

VIGIL MECHANISM /| WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY:

The company has adopted Whistleblower Policy, to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors,
employees and its stakeholders to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conductor Ethics Policy. The policy provides for adequate
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safe guards against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company has
been denied access to the Audit Committee.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The details in respect of internal financial controls and their adequacy are included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AND REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 the Management
Discussion and Analysis and the Corporate Governance Report, is presented in a separate section
forming part of the Annual Report.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The company has received necessary declaration from each of the Independent Directors, under
Section 149 (7) of The Companies Act, 2013 and that he/she meets the criteria of Independence laid
down in Section 149 (6) of The Companies Act, 2013 and as per Regulation 16 of SEBI Listing
Requlations.

There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as independent directors of the
Company.

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees, commission and reimbursement
of expenses, if any

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE WORK PLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the
Sexual Harassment of women at Work place (Prevention, prohibition and Redress al) Act, 2013.

All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. No
complaints pertaining to sexual harassment were received during F.Y.2022-23.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

The Company would like to acknowledge all its stakeholders, SBl and HDFC Bank and its customers, key
partners for their support and all its employees for their dedication and hard work.

The Directors appreciate the continued guidance received from various Regulatory Authorities
including REI, SEBI, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, The Registrar of Companies, The Stock Exchange,
Mumbai, Income Tax and GST Authorities.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors

Bhushanlal Arora
Chairman

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30™ May, 2023
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Disclosure Inform AOC-1in terms of Section 129 of The Companies Act, 2013 is annexed Form

AOC-1

{Pursuant to first Proviso to Sub Section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies

(Accounts) Rules 2014)

Statement containing Salient features of the financial statement of subsidiary company

PART A
(AMT IN LAKHS)

“Sr. . .

No. Particulars Details

1 MName of the subsidiary Xicon International Limited
2 Reporting period of the subsidiary Concerned if different | 01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023

from holding Company's reporting period 01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023

3 Share capital 309.16

4 Reserves &Surplus 506.02

5 Total Assets 3608.33

6 Liabilities 2793.156
7| Investment 5.97

8 Turnover 1848.39

9 Profits before Taxation 56.84

10 | Provision for Taxation 31.04

11 | Profit after Taxation 25.80

12 | Proposed Dividend —

13 | % of shareholding 55.25%
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CS. G.S.JAMBEKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY

B.A. LL.M. FCS. DLP.DFM. MIMA
401, Om Malayagiri Chs Ltd., Sant Dnyaneshwar Marg, Near Shrikrishna Nagar, Borivali
(E), Mumbai — 400 066. Mobile: 91-9619835322. E-mail gs.jambekar@gmail.com.

FORM NO. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023.
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Kaiser Corporation Limited

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Kaiser Corporation Limited
(hereinafter called 'the Company'). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company, the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of
Secretarial Audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations
made by the Management, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023,generally complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records made available to us and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended
on 31st March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and the rules made there under;

i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made
thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regqulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
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(v)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(e)

(F)

(9)

(h)

During the year under review no Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings were made.

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

Complied with the provisions of the Regulations.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Reqgulations, 1992;

Complied with the provisions of the Regulations.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

MNo share or debenture issue was made during the audit period.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

The Company did not make any issue of capital during the year under review.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

The Company has not issued Stock Options during the Audit period.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;

Mo debt securities have been issued during the Audit period.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Requlations, 2009;

Mo delisting application has been made by the Company during the Audit

period.
AND

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Requlations, 1998;

Mo Buyback of shares has been done by the Company during the Audit period.
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Other laws applicable specifically to the Company:

a) The Employees Provident Fund Act,(Voluntarily accepted),
b) The Maharashtra Profession and Callings Act,

c¢) Maharashtra VATS Act,

d) The Central Sales Tax Act.

e) Goods and Services Tax. (GST) Act, 2016

f) Income Tax Act, 1961

g) Maharashtra Labour Welfare Act.

h) Bombay Shops & Establishment Act.

i} The Employees State Insurance Act.(Voluntarily accepted).
j) The Payment of Bonus Act.

We have examined and verified the compliance of the above laws.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(I) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreement/Requlations entered into by the Company with Stock
Exchange(s) Bombay.

The Company is not engaged in any manufacturing process and has no factory and
therefore, the acts such as Factories Act, Industrial Disputes Act, Workmen's
Compensation Act, Trade Unions Act, Employees Standing Orders Act, Child Labour
(Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986 and other labour laws and Acts are not applicable.

In view of total number of employees being below 10 the following Acts are not applicable:

i) Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 ii) Maternity Benefit Act, iii) Minimum Wages Act.-1948 iv)
Payment of Wages Act, 1936.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following
observations:

There are no non compliances / observations / audit qualification, reservation or adverse
remarks in respect of the above report.

We further report that:
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. No changes in the

composition of the Board of Directors took place during the period under review.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
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seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as

recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of Directors
as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and quidelines. This Reportis to be read

with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of
this report.

We further report that during the audit period the company has not;
(i) Issuedany Public/Rights/Preferential issue of shares/ debentures/ equity, etc.
(ii) Done any redemption / buy-back of securities.

(iii) No major decisions have been taken by the members in pursuance to section
180 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv) Nodecision asto any Merger/ Amalgamation / Reconstruction, etc. was taken;

(v) Nodecision forany foreign technical collaboration was taken.

For CS. G. S. Jambekar
Company Secretaries.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2023 G.S.Jambekar
UDIN:FO01569E000431416 FCS: 1569 CP: 3735.
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CS. G.S.JAMBEKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY
B.A. LL.M. FCS. DLP.DFM. MIMA

401, Om Malayagiri Chs Ltd., Sant Dnyaneshwar Marg, Near Shrikrishna Nagar, Borivali
(E), Mumbai — 400 066. Mobile: 91-9619835322. E-mail gs.jambekar@gmail.com.

To,

ANNEXURE A’

The Members,
Kaiser Corporation Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial
records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that, the process and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records
and Books of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about
the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination
was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For CS. G. S. Jambekar
Company Secretaries.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2023 G. S.Jambekar
UDIN:FO01569E000431416 FCS: 1569 CP: 3735.
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KAISER CORPORATION LTD.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2022-2023

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY

The essence of Corporate Governance is about maintaining the right balance between economic, social,
individual and community goals. At Kaiser, good corporate governance is a way of life and the way we do our
business, encompassing every day's activities and is enshrined as a part of our way of working. The Company
is focused on enhancement of long-term value creation for all stakeholders without compromising on integrity,
societal obligations, environment and regulatory compliances. Our actions are governed by our values and
principles, which are reinforced at all levels of the organisation. These principles have been and will continue to
be our guiding force in future. For your Company, good corporate governance is a synonym for sound
management, transparency and adequate disclosure, encompassing good corporate praclices, procedures,
standards and implicit rules which propel a company to take sound decisions. As a Company with a strong
sense of values and commitment, Kaiser believes that turnover must go hand in hand with a sense of
responsibility towards all stakeholders. The cardinal principles such as independence, accountability,
responsibility, transparency, trusteeship and disclosure serve as means for implementing the philosophy of
Corporate Governance. This philosophy is reflected and practised through the Kaiser Code of Conduct, the
Kaiser Business Excellence Model and the Kaiser Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Code
of Corporate Disclosure Practices. Further, these codes allow the Board to make decisions that are
independent of the management. The Company is committed to focus its energies and resources in creating
and positively leveraging shareholders' wealth and, at the same time, safequarding the interests of all
stakeholders. This is our path to sustainable and profitable existence and growth. The Company has adopted
Governance Guidelines to cover aspects related to composition and role of the Board, Chairman and
Directors, Board diversity, Director's term, retirement age and commitiees of the Board. It also covers aspects
relating to nomination, appointment, induction of Directors, Director's remuneration, subsidiary oversight and
Board effectiveness review.

The Company is in compliance with the requiremenits stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule
\ and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), as
amended from time to time and as applicable, with regard to Corporate Governance including relaxations
granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) from
time to time. Kaiser has always adhered to principles and values that align with the ideas of our Promoters. At
Kaiser we treasure our values and are committed to sustainable growth. The key values of the Company's
culture are SCALE (Safety, Care, Agility, Learning, Ethics). The Company is committed to driving these values
and strives to set the highest standards in governance and business ethics.

As per Regulation 15(2) of the Listing Regulation 2015; the compliance with the Corporate Governance
provisions as specified in regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21,22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub
regulation (2) of requlation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V shall not apply, in respect of-

(a)The listed entity having paid up Equity Share Capital not exceeding Rupees ten Crore and net worth not
exceeding rupees twenty five crore, as on the last day of the previous financial year.

The Company's Authorized Share Capital as on 31% March, 2023 is Rs.10 crores out of which the Paid-up Share
Capital of the Company is Rs.5,26,21,020/- divided into 52,621,020 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each and the net
worth is also less than Rupees 25 crores.

In view of the provisions mentioned herein above these Regulations are not applicable to the Company. But with
an intention of applying good Corporate Governance practlices in the affairs of the Company, we have adopted
every aspect of the Corporate Governance Norms in our business activities, as mandated under the SEBI
Listing Regulations, 2015.

24 KAISER CORPORATION



KAISER CORPORATION LTD. THIRTIETH ANMUAL REPORT 2022-2023

1. CODE OF GOVERNANCE

The Company's governance framework is based on the following principles:

E Appropriate composition and size of the Board, with all the Members bringing in expertise in
their respective domains;

Availability of information to the Members of the Board and Board Committees to enable them
to discharge their fiduciary duties;

Timely disclosure of material, operational and financial information to the Stakeholders;
Proper business conduct by the Board, Senior Management and employee

T

T

1. THE EOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is the focal point and custodian of corporate governance for the Company. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a compelitive advantage. Atruly diverse Board will include and
make good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience, background, gender and other
distinctions between directors. These differences will be considered in determining the optimum
composition of the Board and, when possible, will be balanced appropriately.

The Board of Directors (“Board”) is at the core of our corporate governance praclice and oversees and
ensures that the Management serves and protects the long-term interest of all our Stakeholders. The
Board has a fiduciary relationship in ensuing that the rights of Stakeholders are protected

Your Company's functions are governed by professional Directors under whose directions / guidance the
Company has flourished so far in its activities. The Board of Directors of the Company has a proper blend of
Independent and Non-Independent Directors in line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013('the
Act’) and the ("SEBI Listing Regulations') as amended from time to time.

The Company has a strong and diverse Board of Directors, independent of management with sufficient
expertise to oversee corporate management on behalf of the Company's share holders. The Board
reviews and approves corporate stralegies that are intended to build sustainable long-term wvalue. In
making decisions, the Board considers the interests of all the stakeholders of the Company such as
employees, customers, suppliers and the community in which the Company operates.

The Board comprises of Four Directors of which one Directories an Executive Director and three Directors
are Non-Executive Independent Directors out of which one is a woman Director which commensurate with
the size of the Company, complexity and nature of various underlying business activities.

Board of Directors strictly follows the Company's Code of Conduct. The Board periodically reviews

compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company as well as take step store clify instances of any
non-compliance.

2 COMPOSITION OF THEBOARD

The Chair person of the Board is an Executive Director. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that
they meetl' Independence’ criteria as per Regulation 16{1) (b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with
Sectlion 149(6) of the Act.

MNone of the Independent Directors of the Company are related to each other. The appointment of
Executive Director including the tenure and terms of remuneration has already been approved by the
members.
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Meetings of the Board:
During Financial Year (“F.Y.") 2022 - 2023

The Board met 6 times on the following dates:

1. 30.05.2022

2. 12.07.2022

3. 12.08.2022

4. 14.11.2022

5  14.02.2023

6. 27.03.2023
Mame of Director 1 2 3 4 5 6 % of attendance
Mr. Bhushanlal Arora P P P P P P 100%
Mr. Rajendra Vaze P P P P P P 100%
Mrs. Anagha Korde P A |A |A P P 50%
Mr. Rohinton Daroga P P |P P 3 P 100%

The maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings did not exceed four months. The
necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings. The notice and detailed agenda along with the
relevant notes and other material information are sent in advance separately to each Director and in
exceptional case stabled at the Meeting with the approval of the Board.

1. Scheduling and Selection of Agenda Iltems for Board Meetings:

All departments of the Company schedule their work plans in advance, particularly with regard to matters
requiring consideration at the Board/Commitiee meetings. All such matters are communicated to the
Chairman in advance so that the same could be included in the Agenda for the Board/Committee meetings.

ii. Attendance and Directorships held:

Information about the Directors of the Company, their attendance at the 29" Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on September 30, 2022 and the Number of Directorships in other Companies and

Committee position in other Public Limited/Private Limited Companies as on March 31, 2023; are detailed
below:
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Directorship
in other MNo. of other .
Attendance at Indian Board Relafmn
s el Date of the AGM held Public Committees ship
No. | the Director | Joining the |  Category on 30" Limited in which with
’ Board September Companies Chairman Directars
2022 -Chairman Member**
IMember*
ik G halrgersnn
1. Bhushanlal | 20/09/1993 | Managing Attended NIL NIL None
D. Arora Director
Non —
Mr.Rajendra Executive
2. 10/06/2008
R.Vaze Independent Attended NIL NIL None
Director
MNon —
Mrs. Anagha Executive
3. 30/09/2015
Korde Independent Attended NIL NIL None
Director
Non —
Mr. Rohinton Executive
4. Daroga o015 I"d[fp'e;de"t Not Attended NIL NIL None
irector

* Excludes Directorships in Indian Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Companies
under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013

*Represents memberships / chairmanships of Audit Committee & Stakeholders Relationship
Committee.

1. Chairmanship/Membership of Committee includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationships
Committee of Indian Public Limited Companies excluding Kaiser Corporation Limited.

2. All the Directors of the Company comply with the requirements of the Directorship as stipulated under
Regulation 17 A and Regulation 26 (1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation
Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015. The Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding
their Directorship / committee position to the Company.

iii NUMBER OF SHARES HELD BY NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS :

Mr. RajendraVaze holds10000 Equity Shares and Mrs. Anagha Korde holds 5000 Equity Shares and Mr.
RohintonDoroga does not hold any Equity shares of the Company as on March 31, 2023. The Company
has notissued any convertible instruments during the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

iv  SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

During the year 2022-23, as per the requirements of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
Listing Regulations, 2015; a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 18 January, 2023
without the presence of the Non — Independent Directors and the Members of the Management. The
Meeting was conducted in an informal manner to enable the Independent Directors to discuss and review
the performance of the Chairperson of the Company and for assessing the gquality, quantity and time lines
of flow of information between the Company's Management and the Board.
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3. COMMITTEES OF BOARD

The Company has 3 (Three) Board Level Committees to focus on critical functions of the Company and
also for smooth and efficient business operations.viz. Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, Stakeholders' Relationship Committee. The Committees meet at regular intervals for deciding
various matters and providing directions and authorizations to the management for its implementation.
Minutes of the proceedings of each committee meeting is circulated to the members of that Committee for
their comments and thereafter, confirmed and signed by the Chairman of the respective Commitiee. The
Board also takes note of minutes of the meetings of the Committees duly approved by their respective
Chairman and the material recommendations/decisions of the Committees are placed before the Board
for approval/information. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to these Commitiees.

Details on role and composition of these Committees, including number of meetings held during FY 2022-
23 and the related attendance are provided below:

A. Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013; read with Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. The Audit Committee
invites such of the Executives, as it considers appropriate, representatives of the Statutory Auditors to
attend the meeting.

During FY 2022-23, the Audit Committee met 4 times, on 30.05.2022, 12.08.2022, 14.11.2022, and
14.02.2023.The requisite quorum was present at all the meetings. The Chairman of the Commitiee was
present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 30.2022

No. of Audit
Sr. Committee
No. gi'::t:: Position Category Meetings
' attended
Non-Executive
1. Mrs. Anagha Korde Member . 2outof4
IndependentDirector
2 Mr. Rohinton S P NorrExecupvelndependenl Ao
Daroga Director
3. Mr. Tr";?ganlal Chairman ManagingDirector 4 out of 4

The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the Company's
internal controls and financial reporting process and interalia, performs the following functions:

a. Over view of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its Financial Information
to ensure that the financial statements reflect a true and fair position and that sufficient and credible
information are disclosed;

b. Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditors, fixation of audit fee and also
approval for payment for any other services;

c. Discussion with the external auditors before the audit commences, of the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

d. Reviewing the financial statements and draft audit report, including the quarterly/half yearly financial
information;

e. Reviewing with the management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board,

focusing primarily on;

Any changes in accounting policies and praclices;

Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management;

Qualifications in Draft Audit Report;

Significant adjustments arising out of audit;

The going concern assumption;

Compliance with Accounting Standards;

T Ta o
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Compliance with Stock Exchange and legal requirements concerning Financial Statements;
. Any Related Party Transactions as per Accounting Standard 18;
Reviewing the Company's financial and Risk Management Policies;
Disclosure of Contingent Liabilities;
Reviewing with the management External and Internal auditors, and the adequacy of Internal Control
Systems;
Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in payments to the Depositors, Debenture Holders,
Shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

Pe 23T

S

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC"):

The NRC of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013; read with Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. The terms of reference of the NRC
includes various matters in conformity with the statutory guidelines including the following:

a. To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director;

b. To formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of
Directors:

C. The remuneration/ compensation/ commission etc. to Directors will be determined by the
Committee and shall be recommended to the Board for approval;

d. Recommend to the Board a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other Senior Management positions;

e Formulate and review criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors;

f. Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing;

g. Such other matters as the Board may from time to time request the Remuneration Committee to

examine and recommend/approve and/or enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or
modification, as may be applicable.

During Financial Year 2022-23 the NRC met one time on 30.06.2022. The requisite quorum was present at
the meeting. The Chairman of the NRC was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on September 30, 2022

No. of NRC

Sr. . e Meetings

No. Name of Director Position Category il

1 Mr. Rajendra R. Chairman Nﬂn-Execut!ve Independent 1 out of 1

Vaze Director

Mr. Rohinton MNon-Executive Independent

2. Daroga Member Di B 1 out of 1
MNon-Executive Independent

3. | Mrs. Anagha Korde Member Di B MNone

Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors:

The Performance Evaluation criteria for Independent Directors are determined by the NRC. An indicative list
of factors that may be evaluated include participation and contribution by a Director, commitment, effective
deployment of knowledge and expertise, effective management of relationship with stakeholders, integrity
and maintenance of confidentiality and independence of behavior and judgment.

A. Stakeholders Relationship Committee (“SRC"):

The SRC of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 178 (2) of the Companies Act,
2013; read with Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.
The terms of reference of the SRC, inter-alia, includes the following:
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. The Shareholders Relationship Committee of the Board is empowered to oversee the redressal of
Investors Complaint(s), Share transfers, Non-Receipt of Annual Report, Dividend payment, Issue

of Duplicate Certificate, Transmission (with and without legal representation) of Shares and other
miscellaneous complaints;

. Reviewing of Investors Complaints and take necessary steps for redressal there of;

. To perform all functions relating to the interest of the stakeholders of the Company as may be
required by the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under.

During Financial Year 2022-23, the SRC met 4 times on 02.07.2022, 21.09.2022, 20.12.2022 and
22.02.2023. The requisite quorum was present at all the meetings. The Chairman of the SRC was present
at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 30, 2022

No. of
Sr. SRC
No. Name of Director | Position Category Meetings
attended
1) Mr. Rajendra R. o Nﬂn—Executlwe Independent Hitora
Vaze Director
5 Mr. Rohinton ik Nan—Exec:utlwe Independent Lot ora
Daroga Director
Non-Executive Independent
3. Mrs. Anagha Korde | Member Oiacion 1outof 4
Contact details of the Compliance Officer/ Company Secretary
Mrs. Jinal Patani Address: Unit No 283-287, “F~
Company Secretary Wing, 2nd Floor, Solaris-I, E-mail:
Cum Compliance Saki Vihar Road, Andheri compliancekaiser@gmail.com
Officer (East), Mumbai 400072

Mrs Jinal Patani was appointed as the company secretary Cum compliance Officer of the company
w. e. . 23rd April 2022 and Mrs. Priyanka Chaturvedi resigned from the post of company Secretary on 22™
April 2022

All grievances received from the shareholders of the Company are being redressed expeditiously and
satisfactorily at utmost priority, by the Secretarial Department and the RTA of the Company.

Details of Shareholders’ Complaints Received, Solved and Pending during FY 2022-23

NMumber of complaints received so far 1
Number of complaints solved to the satisfaction of Shareholders 1
Number of pending complaints Nil
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6.

7.

4. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The Company has one Non Listed Subsidiary company:

1. Xicon International Limited

From time to time the various significant issues pertaining to the Subsidiary Company are discussed at
the Board meetings. The Audit committee also reviews the financial statements, and other financial

transactions of the subsidiary Companies.

5. GENERAL BODY MEETING

The details of the Shareholder's Meeting(s) held during the preceding 3 Financial Years:

Sr. Type of Date
No. Hg;ting &Time Location Details of Special Resolution passed
Friday
29th 30ih |
1. Annual September, Video B
General 2022 Conferencing
Meeting at 11.00 a.m.
Thursday
;Bth | e Video
nnua September, : - i i :
2. Ganacal '??D21 Conferencing Appointment of Managing Director
Meeting at 11.00 a.m.
- Appointment of Mrs. Anagha korde as
27th Wﬁiﬁdﬂ an Independent Director
3. Annual September, Video ; - Appointment of Mr. Rajendra R. Vaze
General 2020 Conferencing as an Independent Director
Meeting | at11.00 a.m. - Appointment of Mr. Rohinton E Daroga
as an Independent Director
BALLOT
During the year no postal Ballot was conducted
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The quarterly / half yearly and annual
results of the Company

Published in National English newspaper as well
as newspaper published in vernacular language
of the region where the Registered Office of the
Company is situated, viz. Free Press Journal in
English and Navshaktiin Marathi in Mumbai

All the Shareholders’ information

Such information is made available on the
Company's website at www kaiserpress.com
Where in there is a separate dedicated Section
named as' Investor Relations'

The Quarterly Results, Shareholding
Pattern, Quarterly Compliances and all
other Corporate communication during
the year ended March31, 2023

Filed electronically with BSE through BSE
Listing Centre & also placed on the website of
the Company at www.kaiserpress.com

All material information including declaratio
of Financial Results; Press Releases,
Presentations made to Institutional Analyst
or Investors etc.

The Company has promptly reported to the
1Stock Exchange(s) where Shares of the
Company are listed, viz.BSE Limited ("BSE").

Such information is also simultaneously
displayed on the Company's website at
www.kaiserpress.com
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Certain rights that a shareholder in the Company enjoys:

« Totransferthe shares.

« Toreceive the Share Certificates upon transfer with in the stipulated period prescribed in the Act.

= To receive Notice of General Meetings. Annual Report, the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss
Account and the Auditor’s Report.

= Toappoint proxy to attend and vote at the General Meetings.

« Toattend and speak in person, at General Meetings.

= To vote at the General Meeting on show of hands wherein every shareholder has one vote. In
case of vote on poll, the number of votes of a shareholder is proportionate to the number of
Equity Shares held by him.

* To demand poll along with other Shareholder(s) who collectively holding shares on which an
aggregate sum of not less than five lakh rupees or are not less than 1/10th of the total voting
power in respect of any resolution.

= Torequisite an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company by shareholders who collectively
hold not less than 1/10th of the total paid-up capital of the Company.

* Tomove amendments to resolutions proposed at Meetings.

= Toreceive Dividend and other Corporate benefits like Rights, Bonus Shares etc. as and when
declared /announced.

= Toinspect various Registers of the Company.

« To inspect the Minute Books of General Meetings &amp; to receive copies thereof after
complying with the procedure prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

= To appoint or remove Director(s) and Auditor(s) and thus participate in the management through
them.

«  Toproceed against the Company by way of Civil or Criminal Proceedings.

= Toapply forthe Winding-up of the Company.

= Toreceive the residual proceeds upon Winding-up of the Company.

8. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
a) Annual General Meeting (“AGM") for the Financial Year 2022-23.

Dayand Date Friday, 15th September 2023
Time 11.00 am

Financial Year April to March

Board Meeting for considerati on of | 30" May, 2023

accounts

Dividend Rate N.A.

Dividend Payment Date MN.A.

Book Closure Dates 08™ September 2023 to 15™ September 2023
both days inclusive

NIL

Last date for receipt of proxy forms

Financial results for the quarter
ending and Year ending

June 2022 12" August, 2022
September 2022 14™ November, 2022
December 2022 14" February, 2023

Financial year ended 31*March 2023

30th May, 2023
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b) Stock Exchanges where the securities of the Companies are listed:

Name of the Stock Exchange

Scrip Code

BSE Limited

Address: Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai — 400 001.

931780

Annual Listing Fees for the FY 2022 - 23 has been paid to the BSE Limited
Names of Depositories in India for dematerialization of Equity Shares-ISIN No.INE229G01022

Sr. No Particulars
1. MNational Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) ISIN No. INE194R01017
2. Central Depositories Services (India) Limited (CDSL) ISIN No. INE194R01017

c) Market price data -monthly high -low of the closing price on the BSE during the period
from April 2022 to March 2023 is given below:

Month High Price Low Price
April 2022 130.55 54.50
May 2022 124.05 54.85
June 2022 84.40 64.45
July 2022 123.40 71.55
August 2022 896.70 52.70
September 2022 87.95 65.35
October 2022 71.00 54.05
Movember 2022 68.50 94.35
December 2022 59.85 47.20
January 2023 a7.15 43.75
February 2023 55.80 39.00
March 2023 45.00 25.10

d) Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents:

For acknowledgement of transfer deeds and any other documents or for any Grievances/Complaints,
kindly contact at the following address:

Mr. Vinayak Karande

Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Lid.,

9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estate, J R Boricha Marg,
Off N. M. Joshi Marg, Near Lodha Excelus,
Lower Parel (E), Mumbai 400011

Tel No.:23018261/23016761

E-mail:support@purvashare.com

e) Share Transfer System:

The Company's Shares which are in Demat form are transferable through the depository system. Shares
in physical form are processed by the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, Purva Sharegistry (India)
Pvi. Lid., and approved by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company or authorized
officials of the Company. The Share transfers are processed within a period of 15 days from the date of
receipt of the transfer documents by Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvi. Limited.

Further, as per the SEBI revised circular on the said matter Physical Shares cannot be transferred after
March 31, 2019 except in the case of Transmission. Thus, each and every shareholder holing shares in
Physical form are requested to Dematerialize their shares in order to trade in the securities.
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f) Details of Shareholding as on March 31, 2023:

I Distribution of Shareholding

Shareholding of Nominal No. of % of Total no. | Amount % to
Value Shareholders of (in Rs.) Total
Shareholders Capital
1 —5000 13435 98.9541] 1961495.0] 3.7276
5001- 10000 96 0.7071 832237.0] 1.5816
10001- 20000 18 0.132 273657.0] 0.5201
20001- 30000 8 0.0583 195930.0] 0.3723
30001- 40000 4 0.029 135966.0] 0.2584
40001- 50000 3 0.0221 148000.0] 0.2813
50001- 100000 3 0.0221 214060.0] 0.4068
100001and above 10 0.0737] 48859675.0]192.8520
Total 13577 100.00 52621020.00| 100.00
1. Sharehniding Pattern as on March 31, 2023
Category of Shareholders Number of | Percentage
Shares Holdin
[ Promoters and Promoter émup 29213550 55.52
[ Bodies Corporate 17341745 | 32.96
Limited Liability Partnership (LLF) & -
Banks and Financial Institutions - -
NRI Bodies Corporate 2105020 4.00
NRI{Non-Repat) 930 0
Foreign Institutional Investor = =
HUF 27867 0.05
Others— Resident Individuals 3922161 7.45
Others— Clearing Members 744 0
. Directors Share Holding
Sr. No. Name of the Directors Number of Shares held
1. Mr. BhushanlalArora Nil
2. Mr. RajendraR.\Vaze 10,000
3. Mrs. AnaghakKorde 5,000
4, Mr. RohintonDaroga il
TOTAL 15,000
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g) Pledge of Shares:

Mo pledge has been created over the Equity Shares held by the Promoters and/or Promoter Group
Shareholders as on March 31, 2023.

h) Dematerialization of Shares:

As on March 31,2023; 51149830 Shares (approx.97.204%) of the total Equity Share Capital of the
Company are held in dematerialized form with National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited

i) Outstanding GDRS /ADRS / Warrants / Convertible Instruments as on March 31, 2023:
The Company has not issued any GDRs /ADRs / warrants or any other convertible instrument(s).
i) Address for Correspondence:

Mrs Jinal Patani

Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer
Unit no.283-287, “F* Wing,

2nd Floor, Solaris-1 Saki Vihar Road,

Mumbai 400072.

Email id.: compliancekaiser@gmail.com
Website: www kaiserpress.com

k) Corporate Identity Number (CIN):

The Company is registered with The Registrar of Companies Mumbai, Maharashira. The Corporate
Identity Number(CIN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is
L22210MH1993PLC074035.

9. STATUS OF THE COMPLIANCE IN RESPECT OF NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

3 a. Chairperson of the Board: The Executive Chairperson does not maintain any separate office for the
mpany.

b. Remuneration Committee: Details are given under the heading "“Remuneration Committee”.
c. Shareholder's Right: Details are given under the heading "Means of communication”.

10. AUDIT QUALIFICATIONS
During the year under review, there was no qualification in the Auditor's Report on the Company's
financial statements.

11. RECONCILIATION AUDIT

Mr. G.S. Jambekar (FCS No. 1569 CP No. 3?35)hF'racticing Cumtﬂanyr Secretary have carried out Reconciliation
Audit to reconcile the total admitted Equity Share Capital with the National Securities Depository Limited
NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited {CDSLR and the Total Issued and Listed Equity

hare Capital. The Reconciliation Audit Report confirms that the Total Issued / Paid-Up Capital is in agreement
wiﬂdl éh[tje Stital number of Shares in physical form and the total number of Dematerialized Shares held with NSDL
an :

12. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Mr. G. S. Jambekar (FCSNo.1569CPNo0.3735) Practicing Company Secretary have conducted the Secretarial
Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-2023. Their Audit Report confirms that the Company has
complied with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made the rounder, Listing
Agreements with the Stock Exchange, Listing Requlations, applicable SEBI Reqgulations and other Laws
applicable to the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report forms part of the Board's Report.
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13. REQUEST TO SHAREHOLDERS
Shareholders are requested to follow the general procedure / steps as detailed hereunder thus enabling
the Company to serve them efficiently and avoid any risks while dealing in the securities of the Company.

. Demat of Shares:
Shareholders are requested to convert their physical holding to demat / electronic form through any of the
DPs to avoid any possibility of loss, mutilation etc., of physical share certificates and also to ensure safe
and speedy transaction in securities. Any investor who is desirous of transferring shares (which are held in
physical form) after April 01, 2019 can do so only after the shares are dematerialized, except for
transmission (i.e., transfer of title of shares by way of inheritance / succession) transposition (i.e., re-
arrangement/ interchanging of the order of name of shareholders) cases.

. Consolidation of multiple folios:
Shareholders, who have multiple folios in identical names, are requested to apply for consolidation of such
folios and send the relevant share certificates to the Company.

. Registration of Nominations:

Section 72 of the Act, 2013 provides facility for making nominations by shareholders in respect of their
holding of shares. Such nomination greatly facilitates transmission of shares from the deceased
shareholder to his / her nominee without having to go through the process of obtaining succession
certificate/probate of the Will, etc.

It would therefore be in the best interest of the shareholders holding shares in physical form registeredas a
sole holder to make such nominations. Shareholders, who have not availed nomination facility, are
requested to avail the same by submitting the nomination in Form SH-13. This form will be made available
on request. Investors holding shares in demat form are advised to contact their DPs for making
nominations.

. Updation of address:
Shareholders are requested to update their addresses registered with the Company, directly through the

STA, to receive all communications promptly.

Shareholders, holding shares in electronic form, are requested to deal only with their DPs in respect of
change of address and furnishing bank account number, etc.

. SMSAlerts:

Shareholders are requested to note that NSDL and CDSL have announced the launch of SMS alert facility
for demat account holders where by shareholders will receive alerts for debits / credits (transfers) to their
demat accounts a day after the transaction. These alerts will be sent to those account holders who have
provided their mobile numbers to their DPs. No charge will be levied by NSDL/CDSL on DPs providing this
facility to investors. This facility will be available to investors who request for the same and provide their
mobile numbers to the DPs. Further information is available on the website of NSDL and CDSL namely
www.nsdl.co.in and www.cdslindia.com respectively.

14. OTHER DISCLOSURE

. Materially Significant Related Party Transactions

There are no transactions of material nature other than reported under “Related Party Disclosures” that
have been entered into by the Company with the Promoters, Direclors, their relatives and the
Management and in any Company in which they are interested and that may have potential conflict with
the interest of the Company.

All details relating to financial and commercial transactions where Directors may have a pecuniary interest
are provided to the Board and the interested Directors neither participate in the discussion, nor do they vote
on such matters.

The Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions. The policy is available
on the website of the Company at www kaiserpress.com
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. Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading
The Company has duly adopted and have revised and updated Policy on Prevention of Insider Trading as
required by every Listed Company under Regulation3(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

All the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on March 31, 2022; along with their
immediate Relatives, have disclosed their Shareholding in the Company and their acts are in compliance
with the provisions of the said Code of the Company. The policy is available on the website of the Company
atwww kaiserpress.com.

. Policy on Leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information
The Company had formulated and adopted Policies and Procedures for Inquiry in Case of Leak of or
Suspected Leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information under Regulation 9A (5) of the Securities and

Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations,2018.

The Company endeavor to follow Good Corporate Governance Practlices and thus take every step to
ensure that no unfair trade practices are carried on in the Company or by any Personnel of the Company.

«  Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a duly adopted Whistle Blower Policy and established a Vigil Mechanism in line with the
provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013; which aims to provide a
mechanism to the employees and Directors of the Company to report instances of unethical behavior,
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy.

It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company have been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee during the Financial Year 2022-23.

+ Code of Conduct of the Company

All the Directors of the Company adhere to the Code of Conduct of the Company in true letter and spirit
and have given Declaration that they abide by the Code for the year ended March 31, 2023.The policy is
available on the website of the Company.

. Compliance Status

As part of Good Corporate Governance practices all the compliance requirements as per sub-para (2) to
(10) of Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015; have been complied with by the
Company.

. Compliance Certificate

The Secretarial Audit or have certified that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulation and the same forms part of this report.

By order of the Board
For KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30.05.2023

Bhushanlal Arora
Managing Director
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CS. G.S.JAMBEKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY
B.A. LL.M. FCS. DLP.DFM. MIMA
401, Om MalayagiriChs Ltd., SantDnyaneshwarMarg, Near Shrikrishna
Nagar, Borivali (E), Mumbai — 400 066. Ph: 9619835322 E-mail
gs.jambekar@gmail.com.

S ———————————————— e e

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REQUIREMENTS UN EBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS RE

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 .

To the Members of Kaiser Corporation Limited,

1. We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Kaiser
Corporation Limited for the year ended on March 31, 2023 as stipulated in relevant
Clauses of Chapter IV of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred as "SEBI Listing
Regulations, 20157).

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our examination was limited to the procedures and
implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion
on the financial statements of the Company.

3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

4, We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For CS. G.S. Jambekar
Company Secretaries

CS. G. S. Jambekar
FCS: 1569 CP: 3735.

Place: Mumbai

Dated: 30"May, 2023.
UDIN: FOO1569E000431482
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

GLOBAL ECONOMIC REVIEW

Over the course of the past year, the global economy has experienced various challenges in the form
of geopolitical tension, rising interest rates, high inflation levels. Alongside, the consequences of a
sudden surge in COVID-19 cases in China also impacted growth projections.

As per the latest estimates by the International Monetary Fund, the global GDP growth rate is
estimated to be 3.4% in CY22 showing resilience towards the recessionary fears. On account of these
headwinds, supply chain disruptions were also rampant. Moreover, due to geopolitical conflicts, crude
oil prices soared, global trade was impacted and inflationary pressures worsened. To rein in inflation,
Central Banks across the world, including the US Federal Reserve, responded with synchronised rate
hikes. Astronger boost from pent-up demand in numerous economies or a fall in inflation is expected in
the course of 2023. The emerging and developing economies of the world are likely to play a major role
in accelerating global economic growth. Another silver lining is the fact that global inflation is likely to
decline from8.8% in C.Y. 2022 t0 6.6% in C.Y. 2023 and 4.3% in C.Y. 2024

INDIAN ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

The Indian economy remained remarkably resilient to global challenges in F.Y. 2022-23. This is
evident by robust domestic demand and upbeat investment activity. Sectoral analysis reveals that
growth was driven by robust construction activity aided by increased infrastructure investment both by
the Central Government and State Governments, which paved the way for large-scale employment
opportunities. Building on the gains of first half of the fiscal year, the second half continued to see a
gradual upswing in demand and economic activity. While post-covid, private investment recovery is
still at a nascent stage, there are early signals, which indicate that India is poised for a stronger
investment up cycle in both manufacturing and services sectors. The number of private investment
projects under implementation in the manufacturing sector is also steadily growing.

OUTLOOK

Despite high inflation, the Indian economy has achieved GDP growth of 7.2% in FY. 2022-23.
Sustained growth in GST collections, electronic toll collections and the volume of e-way bills
generated indicate encouraging momentum. Indices of manufacturing activity such as the PMI-
manufacturing, the Index of Industrial Production and the Index of Core Industries (IC1) demonstrate
that manufacturing activity continues to grow steadily. Indicators of the services sector (UPI
transactions, high credit demand) also point towards sustained expansion. To drive the virtuous cycle
of infrastructure investment and job creation, the Union Government has considerably increased the
capital expenditure outlay to 10 Lakh Crore, which is 33% higher than the previous year. The increase
in infrastructure spending, especially in tier Il and tier lll cities is anticipated to have a substantial effect
on the Indian economy, generating new employment opportunities and stimulating growth. Overall,
the demand conditions in India remain conducive to supporting economic activity. India faces the
coming financial year with confidence imparted by underlying and overall macroeconomic stability,
while being on the alert against geo-political and geo-economicrisks.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Kaiser Corporation Limited through its subsidiary is actively involved in manufacturing of specialized
Electronic and engineering services to Pipe, Power plants and Electronic heat industries in India and
abroad. The Company through its subsidiary Xicon International Limited is service oriented company
which excels in Turnkey projects and systems. The Company's subsidiary Xicon International Limited
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is offering services to various domestic and international companies and Corporations like BHEL,
TATA Power Projects, ONGC, Linde, Indian Qil, Bharat Petroleum,and various other Multinationals.

OPPOURTUNITIES, STRATEGIC RESPONSES AND THREATS

Greatest interest in using Technology to drive business growth and accelerated adoption of Public
Cloud and great acceptance of E-Service platform. Overall business activities post pandemic has
increased with great opportunities but still the industry has not recovered fully on domestic and
international level and the effect of full revival will be reflected after six months.

THREATS:

Many established businesses and new entrants vying for market share in the industry, which is
marked by a high degree of competitiveness. This results in strong pricing intensity, diminished pricing
power, and increased marketing and advertising expenditures. Changes in economic conditions,
such as inflation or recession, can have a detrimental effect on consumer spending and the demand
for the products. This can resultin decreased sales and revenue for businesses within the industry.

INTERNALCONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIRADEQUACY:

There is adequate internal control system in the company through internal Auditand regular operations
review with highest and most ethical standards of Quality, Technical Expertise, Consistency and
Customization imparted through the experience, training, knowledge and innovative process
implementation providing value for money to customers regularly.

The Company through its subsidiary understands the challenges of coping with quality based pricing
and helping to meet the objectives in time and on budget.

Periodical physical verification of stocks during the year and adjustment of discrepancies between the
physical verification and the books are recorded appropriately.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITHRESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

The discussion in this section relates to the Consolidated Financial Reports pertaining to the year that
ended on 31" March 2023. The Financial Statement of the Company with its subsidiary is prepared in
accordance with Ind AS (Referred to as Accounting standards )as prescribed under Section 133 of The
Companies Act 2013. Proper Accounting policies while preparing Financial Statements are disclosed
in notes to accounts.

Your Company's consolidated total income was to the tune of Rs. 2038.27 lakhs compared to the
consolidated in come of Rs.3320.55 lakhs for the previous year and the net Profit of Rs. 25.31 lakhs
compared to the net Profit of Rs.97.85 lakhs for the previous year

STANDALONE :

The standalone total in come was to the tune of Rs. 59.75 lakhs compared to the standalone in come of
Rs.59.14 lakhs for the previous year.

HUMAN RESOURCES:
Putting employee's safety and well being is a key to the success and growth of the Company. The

Company provides pandemic assistance and helps the employees to access Covid Centers set up by
the government at various locations. The Company aims to attracts, develop, motivate and retain
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diversified talent which is critical for success of the Company. The Company through its Subsidiary's
talent management strategy seeks to maximize the potential of every employee by creating purpose
driven, inclusive, stimulating and rewards work environment while fueling business growth.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK:

Geo- political situation like Russia-Ukraine war has forced global businesses to revisit their
operations, delivery, supply chains and contractual aspects. Your Company's governance structure
has well-definedrolesandresponsibilitieswhichenablesandem powers the management to identify,
assess and leverage busines sopport unities and manage risks effectively

To safeguard the interests of its stakeholders, the Company has implemented a comprehensive risk
management framework to identify, analyse and manage business risks. The foundation for kaiser's
risk management and governance is a strong and well-built internal financial control system. The
Company's risk management framework focuses on ensuring that risks are recognised and managed
in a timely and reasonable manner from a top-down to the bottom-up approach, and is kept flexible to
adapt to evolving business requirements

ENHANC IN SHARE HOLDER'S VALUE:

You company continue to look for ways to achieve greater business success. Whether the measure is
growth, profit, return on investment, market share, or another similar way,and this means increasing
shareholder value. With the concept of the value delivery process solidly in mind, your company
increases shareholder values for time to time.

CAUTION ARYSTATEMENT:

This document contains statements about expected future events, financial and operating results of
your Company, which are forward-looking. By their nature, forward-looking statements require the
Company to make assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties. There is significant
nisk that the assumptions, predictions will not prove to be accurate. Readers are cautioned not to place
undue reliance as several factors could cause assumptions, actual future results and events to differ
materially from those expressed. Accordingly, this document is subject to the disclaimer and qualified
in its entirety by the assumptions, qualifications and risk factors referred to in the management's
discussion and analysis of Kaiser 's Intergrated Annual Report F.Y. 2022-23
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CS. G.S.JAMBEKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY

B.A. LL.M. FCS. DLP.DFM. MIMA
401, Om Malayagiri Chs Ltd., Sant Dnyaneshwar Marg, Near Shrikrishna Nagar, Borivali
(E), Mumbai — 400 066. Mobile: 91-9619835322. E-mail gs.jambekar@gmail.com.

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS (pursuant to
Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015).

To,

The Members of Kaiser Corporation Limited,
Registered Office is situatedat UnitNo.283-287,
2nd Floor Fwing, Solaris-l, SakiVihar Road,
Andheri (east), Mumbai—400 072.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received
on email from the Directors of Kaiser Corporation Limited having CIN
L22210MH1993PLC074035 and having registered office at Unit No. 283-287, 2nd Floor, F
wing, Solaris-l, Saki Vihar Road, Andheri (east), Mumbai— 400 072 (hereinafter referred
to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause
10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered
necessary and explanations furnished to me / us by the Company & its officers, we hereby
certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company, as stated below, for the
Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority .

Sr. No. | Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in Company
1: Mr. BhushanlalDesrajArora 00416032 | 20/09/1993
2 Mr. RajendraRamchandraVaze 02244651 | 10/06/2008
3. Ms. AnaghaAnantkumarKorde 02562003 | 30/09/2015
4. Mr. RohintonErachDaroga 01018971 | 30/09/2015
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Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion based on these documents on our verification. This certificate is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Mumbai/Pune Signature: For G. S. Jambekar,
Date: 26/06/2023. Company Secretaries.
UDIN:F001569E000506150 G.S.Jambekar

FCS51569 CPNo.3735
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TOTHEMEMBERS OF
KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of M/s Kaiser Corporation
Limited ("hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company( the holding
company and its subsidiary company together referred to as "the Group"), which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income) and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated Financial Statement. )

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015
as Amended (IND AS) and the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit and its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

EMPHASIS MATTER
We draw your attention to

In case of Subsidiary company, the company has not collected/paid from/ to overseas parties
aggregating to Rs.52.14 lakhs out of 433.57 lakhs and Rs. 3B.73 out of 89.47 lakhs respectively, which
are outstanding for recovery/payment for a period more than 3 years as at 31/03/2023. These amounts
have remained outstanding beyond period stipulated under Foreign Exchange Management
Act('FEMA').

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the IND AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report:
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Revenue Recognition under IND AS 115: Revenue
from contract with customers: Fixed price
contracts

How our audit assessed the key matter

The Company inter alia engages in Fixed-price
contracts, wherein, revenue is recognized using the
percentage of completion computed asper the input
method based on the Company's estimate of contract
costs (Refer Note 2(h) to the standalone financial
statements)

We identified revenue recognition of fixed price
contracts as a Key Audit Matter since:

a. it pertains to the major activity of the company and
the recognition of the revenue depends on third party
certification based on the invoices raised, and
approved based on the survey.

Our audit procedures on revenue recognized from
ﬁxecl price contracts includes:
Obtained an understanding of the system
processes and controls implemented by
company for recording and computing revenue.

. With regards to information technology:

» Assessed the IT environment which the
business system operates in and tested the
system controls over which the revenue is
recognized;

= Tested IT controls over appropriateness of cost
and revenue reports generated by the system;

= Tested controls pertaining to allocation of

resources and budgeting systems which prevent
unauthorized recording or changes to costs
incurred and controls relating to the estimation of
contract costs required to complete the
respective projects.

b. application of this standard is complex and it
involves number of key judgements and estimates
mainly in identifying performance obligation and
recognition of revenue based on the stage of
completion of the contract on certified invoices.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The Holding Company's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the consoclidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information compare with the financials statement of the subsidiary company audited by the other
auditor, to the extent it relates to these entities and in doing so ,place reliance on the work of other
auditors and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FORTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including Other Comprehensive Income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated
changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including the Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and amendment thereof.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
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adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concemn basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company's financial reporting process.

AUDITORS'RESPONSIBILITY

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butisnota
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these Ind AS consolidated financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concemn basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future evenis or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropnate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
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business activities within the group of which we are Independent Auditors and whose financial
information we have audited, to express an opinion on consolidated financial statement. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statement
of such entities included in the consolidated financial statement of which we are Independent
Auditor. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Matenality is the magnitude of misstatement in Consolidated Financial Statement that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Financial Statement may be influence. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in |.
Planning the scope of our Audit work and in evaluating the result of our work and |l. To evaluate the effect
of any identified misstatement in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance of the Holding company with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
1. As required by Section 14 3(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
other Comprehensive Income and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure A

47 KAISER CORPORATION



KAISER CORPORATION LTD. THIRTIETH ANMUAL REPORT 2022-2023

a)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of ourinformation and according to the explanations given to us:

The Group does not have any pending litigations which would have impact on its financial
position in its Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Group has did not have any long—term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, ,no funds

(b)

(c)

h)

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to orin any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by oron
behalf of the Company or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of
the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any
material mis-statement.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
managerial remuneration paid or provided for by the group during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197(16) of the Act.

For SHABBEIR & RITAASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 109420W

Shabbir S Bagasrawala

Partner

Membership No. 039865

UDIN : 23039865BGWXJP6595
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2023
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ANNEXURE A
REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of The
CompaniesAct, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Kaiser Corporation
Limited ("the Holding Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the IND AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSILILITY FORINTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Holding Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued, by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that
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1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future period are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SHABBIR & RITAASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 109420W

Shabbir S Bagasrawala

Partner

Membership No. 039865

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2023

UDIN: 23039865BGWXJP6595
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KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2023

¥ i Lahel
Pariculars Mote Mo &5 at a5 at
315t March 2023 315t March 2022
ASSETS
Mon-current assels
(&) Proparty, planl and squipmsnl 2 1E5.TE 17042
(B Gowdwill on Consclidalion 2 21048 210.46
(] Db Inlangie Assals 2 =11 ] .45
(d) Finarncssl Assels
{ib Irrvaslmants 3 08 4.38
() Defansd Tax Azsals 4 XA ET 48.42
[l Cmnar Hon-curant, Assats 5 1687 T2
Tatal Men-current Assets 2311 452,85 |
Current Assots
(a) Invarmaries & 845,16 316.68
() Fingncial Assels
{if Trade raceivalias T 208088 1,807.09
i) Caszh ared cash aguivelants. 8 580 18.85
(i) Othar Dank Dalances 8 106,08 36.42
i} Othars Financial Assels 10 24 B0 4822
Jic) Dihar Current Assets 11 S60.16 419,53
Total Current Assets 342240 2,647 .38
[ TOTAL ASSETS 384551 3,100 82
JEQUATY AND LISBILITIES
Exjuity
(@) Equity Share cageal 12 53602 526.02
|2y CEnar Equaty 13 169,86 15410
Tolal Equity 95,87 50,11
Fean-Coniraling Indanast oAt IS6.ES
1,045,690 1,016,786
LIABALITIES
Mon-current Liabilitiss
(@) Financial Liakdtias
() Prowisions 14 417 541
Total Non-current liabilities 417 541
Current liakilities
() Financial Liabikties
{i} Bomowings 16 1074 47 57613
(i) Trage payables 16
Dug to Micro and Small Enlarnsas 527 55,60
Dua to Dehars 1.336.3% 1,5048.49
iy Cthver francial kabiities iT BO.3T &llES
(=} Othar currant liabiities 18 340,70 150,76
(o] Provisicrs i@ 152 8,05
(d) Current Tax Liabiitias(Met) 648 149,03
TOTAL CURREMT LIABILITIES 2,795 64 2,078.65
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,799,582 208406
TOTAL EQUITY AND: LIABILITIES 3,245.51 3,100.22
|See accomparying notes 1 b 57 forming part of the fnancial
slataments

Im Szrns of aur reper atsched.

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRME REG. MO, 1094200

SHABBIR & BAGASRAWALA
PARTMER
MEMBERSHIP NO. 035865

Place : Mumbai
Ciale = 308h May 2023

FOR AND OM BEHALF OF THE BEOARD OF MRECTORS

Bhushanlal Arora
Managing Direstor
DM Ma. 00416032

Jdinal Patani

Company Secrelary
Membership Mo, AEI5E4

Rajendra Ramchandra Vaze
DHiractor
DN Mo, 02344651

Lyla Jamsheod Mehia
Chief Financial Officer
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KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31st, 2023

See accompanying notes 1 te 46 forming part of the financial
| staternents

{¥ in Laihs)
ear ended fear ended
e Hoke Ho. st March 2023 st March 2022
INCOME
| Reyenue rom Operations i 188473 330489
Il | Cher Incoms Fa| 15354 1566
i [Total Incoma (HI) 203827 3,320.55
i |EXPENSES
(@) Cost of Materials Caorsurmed &2 49331 1.270.86
{b} Purchases of Stock-in-Trade pc | 11433 127.14
() Changes in invantonias of finished goods, Sieck-n-Trade and wark-in- 24
PrOgrasE -110083 -32.10
{d) Employes Benefils Expense Fai} 28117 25189
(e} Finance Cosls pail 111.82 ap.25
(f} Depreciabon and Amortzation Expense k) .40 2064
@b Olher Expanses i | 1,070.59 1,500.32
Total axpanses 195097 317910
W | Profitiiloss) before excoptional items and tax (W) ar.aa 141.45
Wl | Exceptional ltems
Wil [Profit)less) batons (o ar.aa 141.45
Wl [ Tax expenss
() Currer Tax 10,24 4188
(b} Dafarrad Tax 21.80 -0.78
Tax Adjustment of Earar Years (kT a4
BAAT Credil <072 -
Tatal Tax Expense 3169 4160
% |Profitiloss) for the year [A) 25,31 a7.85
X [Other Comprehengive Income 70
A, fems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss :
i) Remaasureman [genilcss]] of net dafinad banedit liabiley B25 -0u38
(i) Effszl [gaimniloss)] of meaguring squily inslruments & Fair Walue thawgh
Other Comprabensive Income (FYTOCI) =336 -1.7T3
(il Income 1ex on abowa 127 0ar
B. lems that will be reclassified subseguently lo profit of loss :
{i) Fair Walue changes on Derivatives designated as Cash Flow Hedges
{ii) Incorme tax on abose -
Total Other Comprehensive Income (B) 361 -1.71
Total Comprehens ive Income for the year [Al+B] 20.92 9615
Total comprebhensive income I (loss) attributabde ta:
Cramais of the Parenl 15.76 5160
Mon-contraling interesis 1818 42 53
Of tha Total Comprahansive incoma / (loss) incledad abova,
Profit ! (loss] for the year atiributable 1o :
Cramers of the Paran 13.78 54.89
Mon-confralling interests 11.55 42 85
Of the Total Comprehensive income /[loss) included above,
Other comprehensive incoma | (loss) atributable fo:
Cranirs of the Parent 200 =105
Mon-contralling intarests 1.62 043
Earnings par equity share:
Basic and diuted {in Rs.} a.n3 aqu

Iri trerms of our report alached

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM'S REG. NO. 1094200

SHAEBIR 5 BAGASRAWALRA
FARTHER
MEMBEREHE MO, DISBEE

Flace : Mumisai
Date : A0tk May 2023

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Bhushanlal Anora
Managing Director
DM Mo, 00416032

Jimal Patani
Company Secratary
Mambarshig Mo, AEISH4

Ragandra Ramchandra Vaze
Diirectar
DM Mo, 02244681

Lyla Jamsaheed Mehts
Chief Finanaial Officar
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A, Equity Share Cagital

KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31st, 2023

{Amount in 7)

Fartigulars Amcunt
Balanvon =5 at April 1, 2022 RAG02
#dd: Chanpges in Equity Share Capital during the wear -
Balance as at March 31, 3023 B2E.02
Mdd: Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year -
Elakarcn &s ol March 31, 3023 526,03
B. Dber Equity

(¥ in Lakhs)

Reserves & Surplus e of OCI Mo
Exusity bk e Tatal Cantrolk Total
Partiqulars Retained General Capital Instruments  [on delined Benefit :“":q
Earnings Rasaren Rasaro Hhraiigh OCI Plan

Bakance a6 ol Apil 1, 2021 &6.59 T 1403 -a.07 42 10798 28538 40337
Prodit Tor the Pesiod 54.64 - . - - 54.98 4295 B7E5
Leas: Mal Cradit Emtitlarent B - - - - -5 - 51
Less: Earlier panicd Taxes =1.68 - - - - -1.58 2T -234
Cener Comprehansive Income Tor the year, Met of Income Tax = = - 1B -1.44 -128% D43 -1.71
Bakance s& a1 March 31, 2022 135,99 T.01 14.0% =291 1.98 154,10 33665 40075
Balance as at April 1, 202 13388 rad 14,03 =281 1498 154,140 kA 48075
Prodit for the penod 12,74 - = = - 1ATE 11.55 2584
Ceher Comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tx = . = .86 386 200 162 361
Balances as at March 31, 2023 147.76 a1 14.03 477 5831 165.8E 34581 519867

In farms of our raport stlEchad

For SHABEIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLF
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRNTS REG, NO. 1094200

SHABBIR 5 BAGASRAWALS
PARTHER
MEMBERSHIP NO. 0FI0ES

Place : Mumbai
Dhate @ 30ih May 2023

Bhushanlal Arora
Managing Director
DIK Mo, 00416032

Jimal Fatani
Company Secretary

Mambership Mo, ABISE4

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajendra Ramchandra Vaze
Drirector
DN Mo, DZ244651

Lyla Jamsheed Mchta
Chief Financial Officer
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KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2023

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit bafore tax 57.30 14145
Adjustment for - -
Interast insoma - 38 -3.82
Interest expense 111.82 90,25
Depreciation and amartization expense 2040 20.64
Lossi{Profit) on sale of property, plant and eguipment (nat) B %
Profit an sale of investmenls -0.00 -
Sundry Balances | advances written off 362 -
Provisian for doubitful debis = 11.54
Interaat in OC1 3.61 1.1
Excess provision writien back 362 -7.54
Uneealised foreign exchangs difenance - -
Oparating profit before working capital changes 188,73 250,69
Movermenls in working capilat:
Decreasefincrease) in trade receivables and olher receivables 27T A2 98,56
Decreagalincreass) in olher financial sssels 24,82 -8.34
Decreasafincreasa) in invenicres 32648 -111.62
Decreasal intreass) in pon-cument assels -B.TS 635
Decreasafincreasa) in currant assels 140,63 -F3a.0
[Decrease)increase in rade payables and olber payables a1.26 1a7.20
Decreasalincreasa) in other current liabilities 189,93 132.67
Decreasafincreasa ] in otber nan-curend liabilities =1.24 1.27
Decreasadtinoreasa] in other lirancial lisbilities 18,72 16,82
Decreasafincreasa) in Current Tax Liailities =21.30 <18.44
Decreasal increasa) in shor arm provisions -6 -3.592
Cash generated from operations 279,65 265,76
Direct taxes paid (nel refunds) = -A.76
et cash flow fram operating activities [A] 279,69 257,00
Cash Hows from investing activities
Furchase of property, plant and aquipment (including cagital work In progress and capital a7 {253
advance) ~ :
Froceeds from sale of progery, plant and equigmeant - -
Purchise of Invesbment 0,08 =0, 04
Procesds from sale of investrsils 0.04 0.05
Proceeds from fiwad deposit {having original maturity of kss than 12 manths) 656G 27.33
Inierast in Q1 3,96 1,73
Irdesressd incoeme 4 38 3.82
Mat cash flow used in investing activities [B] -69.01 20,45
Cash flows from financing activities
Inierest EEpenses 111,82 a0,25
Frocesds from(Repayment of] borawings (nety 448,20 -181.63
Met cash flow from | jused in) financing activities [C) J36.47 -271.88
Net incresse in cash and cazh equivalents (&+B+C) EERF] 555
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance (refer note 13) 18,93 13,34
Cash and cash aquivalents - Closing balanes [refer note 13) 5.80 18.93
Addl |Less): Unrealised sxchange (gain) loss - -
Net increaselidecrease] as disclosed above -15.12 5.58

Hotes:
. Al figures in bracket ane outfiow.

2, Above Cash flow statermant has been prepared urdar ‘Indirect mathod” as set aut in the Ind AS - 7 on 'Cash Flow Statemants’,

Summary of sgnilican accounting pobcies - Refer note 2
Ther accomganying noles form an inlegral part of the fmancial slalements

In terms of aur regar attached.

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FIRM'S REG. NO. 109430W

SHABBIR 5 BAGASRAWALSA
PARTMER
MEMBERZHIP MO, 0394865

Place : Mumbai
Dade : I0th May 2023

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Bhushanlal Arora
Managing Directar
M Mo, 00416032

Jinal Patani
Company Secretary
Meombership No. AEISE4.

Rajandra Ramchandra Vaza
Director
DN Mo, DZ244651

Lyla Jamshesd Mahta
Chief Financial Officer
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Note 2: Property, Plant and Equipmant

KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

|'fJ.".‘ L&M‘?S__,l
Gross Block Degpreciation Nel Block
Particulars on an =] or the an an
oroegozy | Adeions | Detetions | GROL | (W g | Forthevear | L Co e | sioha023 | 31oa02a | 31092022
Quned Assats
Lesagahiohd Land 19.0E 10.08 = - - 19.08 10.08
Buildirg 16866 = - 186.66 76,37 9.05 - 84.43 10424 113,28
Flant & Machinery B6.BE 737 588 86.49 31.21 T3 5.09 53.46 35.03 35.77
Office Equipmenls 18.73 0ET 018 2043 13.26 320 018 18.37 404 B.4AT
Furniture & fixiure T.6D - - T.88 5.88 033 6.32 137 1.70
Eleciricals Installaton 920 8.20 7.33 LT .40 180 1.87
ehiclas 170 1.70 146 0.06 1.52 a.18 0.24
Compuier .55 0.55 0.55 - 0.55 - -
Taolal 333.50 8.25 604 335.80 155.18 2013 5.26 170.05 165.76 178.42
Intangibke Assels
Software T.A1 050 7.1 6.66 027 5.93 069 045
[Total Current Year 340.71 878 604 343,41 161,43 0,40 (%] 176.47 166.44 178,87
3 Non-current Investments
(T in Lakhs)
Particulars syt S
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Investments measured at fare value through Other
Comprehensive Income
Unquoted
Investments in Equity Shares
117000 (Previous Years 117000 ) Equity Shares of Heat 5.97 9.34
Trace Xicon Limited of Rs.10/- each fully paid up*
Investments measured at Amortised Cost
Quoted
20( Previous Year 3) Equity shares of Tata Steel 0.02 0.04
11( Previous Year Nil) Equity shares of BF Utilities 0.04 -
67( Previous Year Nil) Equity shares of TV18 Broadcast 0.02 -
Total 6.06 9.38
Aggregate Amount Of Quoted Investments 0.09 0.04
Aggregate Amount Of Unquoted Investments 5.97 9.34

*Fair value has been estimated by the management based on the unaudited financial statements of the
investee company.

35 KAISER CORPORATION




KAISER CORPORATION LTD.

THIRTIETH ANMUAL REPORT 2022-2023

KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

4 Deferred Tax Assents (Net)

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2022

Deferred Tax Asset on Account of :
Disallowance Expenses

Difference between Book Value And WDV 0.01 0.02
Impact of Provision for Retirement benefit 1.37 3.99
Estimated Credit Loss 15.73 43.37
FVTOCI 0.87 0.87
Impact of Unabsorbed depreciation and Lossess 8.23 0.24
Total (A) 26.20 48.49

Deferred Tax Liability on Account of :
Inpact of Provision for retirement benefit 0.48 0.10
Bonus 0.00 0.03
Depreciation 2.14 1.94
Total (B) 2.63 2.07
Deferred Tax Assets / (Liability) [Net] : (A)-(B) 23.57 46.42

5 Other Non-current Assets

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2022

(Unsecured considered good unless stated otherwise)

Capital Advances 15.00 5.00
Prepaid Expenses 1.87 2.82
Total 16.57 7.82

6 Inventories
(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2022

At lower of cost or Net Realisable Value

Raw Materials 362.76 144.91
Work-in-progress 214.82 90.50
Stock in trade (Trading) 67.58 81.27
Total 645.16 316.68
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KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

7 Trade Receivables

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars gl # At
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Unsecured
Considerad good 2,080,689 1.807.09
Considerad Doubtful 57.39 165.91
2,138 1,963
Less - Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (Refar Mote 44 (C ) 57.39 16591
Total 2,080.89 1,807.09

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on
a provision matrix, The provision matrix takes into account historical credit less experience and adjusted for forward-looking

information.

& Cash and Cash Equivalents

(T in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particeiams 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
A. Cash on hand 1.29 1.28
B. Balances with Banks
Current Accounts 4.51 17.63
Total 5.80 18.93
9 Other bank halances
(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2022

On Margin Money Accounts Hixa B
With Maturity within 12 Months from Balancs Sheet Date

Total 106.08 36.42
*Fixed deposits are under lien with banks towards working capital facilities

10 Other Financial Assets
(¥ in Lakhs)
3 As at As at

Partictlars 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Security Deposit 15.34 3793
Advance to Staff 145 4.07
Others Receivable 751 6.97
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit with Original Maturity of Less than 12 Months - 0.26
Total 24.30 49,22
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11

12

13

KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

Other Current Assets

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2022

A. Advances Other Than Capital advances

B. Others
Loans and advances to suppliers (Unsecured, considered good) 163.88 T2.26
Balances with Government Authorities 305.23 301.22
Prepaid Gratuity 4.02 1.24
Prepaid Expenses 18.61 6.38
Provision for Sales £5.86 3656
Other Adavance 1.83 1.87
MAT Credit 072 -
Total 560.16 419.53
Equity Share Capital
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars ks P
Ist March 2023 3st March 2022
Authorized
100,000,000 {Previous Years100,000,000) Equity shares of Rs.1/-each 1,000.00 1,000.00
Total Authorised share Capital 1,000 1,000
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up
52,621,020 (Previous Years 52,621,020) Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each 526.21 526.21
Less: Call in Arrears 019 -0.19
[Total Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital 526.02 526.02
Other Equity
(T in Lakhs)
Particulars A et
31st March 2023 J1st March 2022
Capital Resarve 14.03 14.03
Share Premium 7.01 7.01
Retained Earnings
Retained Eamings through Profit & Loss 147.76 13399
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tax - -
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income 477 -2.81
Remeasurement of Net defined benefit obligations 5.83 273
Total 169.86 154.86
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KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

14 MNon-current Provisions{Long Term)

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars i\ g P ol
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Provision for employee benefits

Leave Encashment 417 5.41
Total 417 5.41

15 Current Borrowings({Short Term)
(7 in Lakhs)
Particulars st As ot
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Secured
A. Loans Repayable on demand
From Banks

Open Cash Credit * T05.20 516.85

Owverdraft ** - -0.00

MSME Term Loan *** 2428 47.53
UnSecured
From Directors 16.50 -
From Other Parties 278,44 11.75
Total 1,024.42 576.13

1 *Cash credit faclity are secured against:
A) Primary

First and exclusive hypothecation charge on all existing and future receivables ! current assels’ moveable assels! moveable fixed
assets of the Borrower |

B) Collateral

i} First and exclusive charge on immoveable properties being Leasehold land and building situated at Office premises at Gala No
282 to 287 at Solaris - 1, Saki Vihar Road, Opp L& T Gate Mo ¥, Powai owned by Xicon international limited"

"ii) First and exclusive charge on Factory at Plot Mo D-13, MIDC Murbad, Near Ambe Ferro Metal Processor, Murbad, Taluka
Murbad, District Thane owned by Xicon internaticnal Limited.”
iii}) Title search report of the property to be found satisfactory to the Bank,

C) Guarantee
) Corporate guaranteels of Kaiser Corporation and Lorance Investments and Trading Limited.

Cash credit facility carries interest at 6 M MCLR +1,70% and repayable on demand

2 *Qyerdraft facility (110% backed by standby letter of credit)
Owerdraft facilty is backed by standby letter of eredit isuved by REPL International Ltd. Bank i.e. HSBC BANK UK FLC.

Owverdraft facility carries interest at 6 M MCLR +1.70% and rapyable on demand

3 **MSME term Loan

Second charge on all existing and future receivablesicurrent assets/moveable assets/moveable fixed assets of the Borrower,

SME term loan carries interest rate @&8% pa and payable in 48 months including moratorium period of 12 Months)
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16 Trade Payables

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2022

Trade Payables

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Mote Mo 46) 5.27 55.60
Due to Others 1,336.39 1,208.41
Total 1,341.67 1,264.01
17 Other financial liabilities
(T in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2022

Interest Accrued and due on MSME Creditors a3.78 2.88
Fair Value of financial Gaurantee Obligation - -0.00
Salary Payable 48 88 4536
Other Payable 27.91 12.41
Total 80.37 60.65
18 Other Current Liabilities
(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars Az al A
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Other Payables
(i} Statutory Dues 27.95 13.86
(i} Advances from customers 3M2.75 136.90
(i) Deferred Revenue - -
Total 341 151
19 Provisions
(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2022

Provision for employee benefits :

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note  36) - 6.20
Provision for Leave Encashment 147 1.73
Outstanding Expense Payable 0.15 0.14
Total 1.62 8.06
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20 Revenue From Operations
(T in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
J1st March 2023 31st March 2022
Sale of Products 598.57 2,363.26
Sale of Sarvice 1,282 85 916.64
Other Operating Revenues
Sale of Scrap 153 518
Duty Draw Back 1.79 19.81
Total Revenue From Operations 1,884.73 3,304.89
21 Other Income
(¥ in Lakhs)
7 Year ended Year ended
A am 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Intarest from Bank on Daposit 408 247
Imarest on Security Daposits - -
Difference In Exchange Rate (Met) 44 39
Interest on Incoma Tax Refund - -
Interest from Others 032 1.45
Excess Provision / Sundry Balances Witten Back 3862 7.54
Fraight Recovered - 1.85
Profit on Sale of Fixed assats - -
Fair Value Gaurantee Income - -
Renl Recaived 240 240
Miscellaneous income 022 0.24
Short Term Gain Sales of Sharas 0.00 -
Provision for Doubtful Debis 98.52
Total 153.54 15.66
22 Cost of materials consumed
(¥ in Lakhs)
. Year ended Year ended
Ao s 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Raw Material
Crpening Stock of Raw material 144,81 115.50
Add: Purchasas 1.6 1.300.38
Less: Closing Stock of Raw material ~362.76 =144.91
Total Cost of materials consumed 493.31 1,270.96
23 Purchase of Stock in Trade
(T in Lakhsz]
y Year ended Year ended
Carioam 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Electrical Heat Tracers 114,33 127.14
Total 114.33 127.14
24 Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work-in-progress
(¥ i Lakhsz)
. Year ended Year ended
Farioulams 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Stocks at the end
Finished Good - -
Waork-in-progress 21482 90.50
Stock-in-Trade 67.58 31.27
282.40 17177
Less: Stocks at the beginning
Finished Good - -
Wark-in-progress 90.50 2644
Siock-in-Trada 8127 63.23
17177 §9.67
Total -110.63 -#2.10
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Employee Benefits Expense

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2023

Year ended
31st March 2022

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 246.40 238.83
Contributions to Provident and Other Funds 29.91 10.41
Staff Welfare Expenses 4.85 2.65
Total 281.17 251.89
Finance Costs
(¥ in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Interest expense on:

Secured loan 69.21 58.75
Unsecured Loans 17.67 10.72
Statutory Delay Payment 3.25 -
Interest on Short Fall in Payment of Advance Tax - -
Other borrowing costs 21.69 20.78
Total 111.82 90.25
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
(% in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Depreciation Expense 20.38 19.77
Amortisation Expense 0.02 0.87
Total 20.40 20.64
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Other Expenses

(% in Lakhs)
NR—— Year ended Year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Stores, spares, packing materials and consumables consumed 81.91 231.58
Freight charges 38.84 134.32
Subcontractors charges 519.27 619.62
Eaquipment Hire charges 54.99 139.69
Printing charges 3.29 2.38
Other manufacturing expenses 2 0.17
Liguidated damages 6.30 2.32
Insurance 3.49 478
Rent - 0.84
Bank Charges .01 6.04
Sundry Balances Written Off 45,59 -
Exchange loss (net) - 8149
FPower and fuel 29.02 42.65
Rates and taxes 09.749 8.81
Communication expenses 0.02 0.05
Travelling and conveyance 65,64 73.30
Advertising and sales promaotion 0.893 0.89
Provision for doubtful debls - 11.54
Repairs and maintenance - -
- Buildings .50 6.82
- Plant and machinery 1.96 222
- others 023 0.84
Legal And Professional Fees T2.48 26,85
Payment to auditor
- Audit fees 1.02 1.28
- Tax audit fees 0.60 0.60
- Others 0.08 0.08
Selling expenses 52.29 66.66
Security charges 5449 6.73
Miscellaneous expanses 68.84 68.97
Total 1,070.59 1,500.32
Other Comprehensive Income
Other Item of
Particulars comprehensive Total
income
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income -3,36 -3,36
(i} Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined benefits obligations B.25 8.25
1.27 1.27
Less! Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Total 3.61 3.61
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income -1.73 -1.73
(i} Remeasurement gain/{loss) of defined benefits obligations -0.36 -0.36
0.37 0.a7
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Total {1.71) {1.71)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Kaiser Corporation Limiled {"lhe Holding Cempany®) is engage in the business of printing of labels ang cartons in India. The Company was incorpesales on 20
September 1993, having Hs reglstered office at t Unft no-283-287 second floor F Wing Sclaris-| sakl wihar road Andher east Mumbal The Company has one
subsidiary namely, Xicon International Limited which is engaged in offering Turnkey Project Management and Enginesring sendces.

Thess financlal statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorized for Issue by the Board of Directors on 30 May 2023,
BASIS OF PREPARATION AMD PRESENTATION
Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements:

The consclidated financial stalements have been prepared in accordance wilth Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical ¢osl convention on the
accrual basis except for cerain financial instruments which are measweed at falr values and the provision of the Companies Acl, 2013.In addition, the guidance
notesianncucements issued by the Instiiute of Charered Accountants of India (ICA]) are also applied except where compliance with other statutory premulgations
requires a different treatment.

The Ind AS are presented under Section 133 of the Acl read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended ("Ind AE™) and the
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The consalidated financial statements are presented i Indian Rupee and all values are stated In Rs, Lakhs of decimal therecd, except when otherwise indicated,
Wherever the amount represents "7 (zera), value constnees less than Rupees five hundred.

Hey accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements In conformity of Ind AS requires management fo make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
applicaton of sccounting policses and the reported amounts of assets, liabilibes, the disclosures of contingent assels and conbingent liabilities at the date of financial
slatements, income and expenses during the period, Actual results may differ Trom hese estimales. Eslimales and wnderlying assumplions ane reviewed on an
ongaing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in future perods which are affectad.

Application af accounting policies that require critcal accounting estimates and assumolion having the most sigaifican effect an the amaounts recognized In the
financial statermeants ara:

Wsaful life of property, plant and souinment

Ugeful life of intangible assels

Measurement of defined benefit obligation

aluation of financial instrumants

Prowisions

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilties in the balance sheet based on currant’ non-current classification. An asset is treated as cumant when it is:

= Enpecied Lo be realized or intended o be sold or consumed in normal operaling eyele
- Hedd primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twehve months after the reporting period, or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being cmhangm of used lo sellle a |i€lb"l|ihl' Toar &l leasl webve months after the I‘C!:iﬂl‘ﬁil‘lg aeriod,
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A llability is current when;

- Itis expected to be setiied in normal operating cycle

- It is held primanily for the purpose of frading

= 0% due Lo be sellled within laelve months afer the reporling period, or

- There k8 no unconditonal rght 1o defer the setllement of the kability for at least twelve months after the reparting period,

Al other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Duzferried tax assels and liabilities are dassified as non-currenl assels and labilities,
The aperating cycle |s the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and thelr realization In cash and cash equivalents. The Company has (dentified teelve

rmanthes as its operating cycha,
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Recent accounting prondwncements

Cen March 24, 2021, the Mirestry of Corporale Afiaers (*MCA®) through a nobfication, amended Schadula Il of the Compamses Act, 2013, The amandmanis revise
Diwigion |, Il and 11l of Schoedue 1 and are applicable from April 1, 2021, Key amendments relsting 1o Division || which relate i companies whose financial staterments
ara raquirad to comply with Companias (Indian Accounting Stendards) Rulas 2015 are:

Balance Sheat:
» Lease lisbilities should be separately disclosed under the head finandal Eshilites”, duly distinguished as curfent of mdr-current.

= Gengin additonal disclosures in e statement of changss in equity such 88 changes In eguity share capital due to prior period ermors and restaled balances &t the
baginning of the current reporing pericd

= Specilied lormil for disclosure of sharebolding of promobers

= Specified format for ageing schedube of rade receivables, trade payables, capital work-n-progress and ingangible asset under development.

= It & company has not used furds for the specific purpose for which it wae bormowed from banks and financial institubions, then discliosure of detals of where it has
been used.

« Specific dsclosure under ‘addtional regulatary requirement’ Buch &8 comgliance with approwed schames of arangements, compliance with number of layars of
comgares, lille desds of immavable propeny nal held in rame af company, loans and advances to pramalers, Sreclons, key managenal personnel (KMP] and relaled
parties. deteds of banamd property held eic.

Statement of profit and loss:
= Addional disclosures relating te Comporate Socal Respansibility (CSR), untksclosed income and cryplo or virual cumency specilied under the head ‘additional

infarmation’ in tha notes formeng part of the standalona financial statemants.

Tha aemenidmuents are extensive and thie Company will ovaluabe the same o give effiect 1o them as required by

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolideted financial statemeants comprise the financial statamants of the Holding Company and its subssdiary { together referred fo as the "Group®) &8 &t 31
March 2322, Conbrol is achieved when the Group is exposad, or hae nghizs, b vanable ratums from its involvament with the inveslee and has the ability to affect those
redurris thrnugh its powes over the investes. Specifically, lhe Group eonbrals an investes if and only il the Group has:

i} Power owver b investes (e existing righils that give it the curent abilily o direct tbe relevand activilies of he imeslees).
iy Expesire, of fighla. to vanable ratums from ils inelvemant wih the iInvestee, and
iy Thi abilily fo use its power over the investes fo affect its relums

Generally, thera is @ presumption that a majority of voling rights result in control. Te support this presumption and when the Group has lees than a
majority af the voting or similar ights of &n investes, the Group considers all relevant facts and clrcumstances in ass=ssing whelher it has power over 8n investee, inchuding:

B) The cortrectusl arrangameant with the ofher vate holders of the Investes

b The abilily o use iks power ower the inveshes to alled ils relums

) Thie Group's voling rights and potantial wabing rights

o) Thia size of the group’s holding of woting rights ralative fo the size and desparsion of tha holdings of the other voting rights holders

The Groug re-assascas whalher or nal it conlrols an irestes if facts and siccumstances indicale hal there are changes 1o ane of mone af the lhree slemants af
control. Consolidation of a subsidany begins when the Group obising confrod over the subskdiary and cesses when the Group loses control of the subsidiany. Assets,
linhilsties, income snd axpensas of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of duning the year sne included in the consolidsted financial statermants from the date the Group
aing conbral urlil tha dala the Group ceases to contral 1he subsidiary.

Consglidated financial statements are prepared wsing wniform accownting policies for like rensactions and other events in similar crcumstances. f @ member of the
group uses accounting policies other than thosa adopéed in the consolidated financial statements fior like trarsactions and evants in similar circemstances, appropriake
adjustments are made bo that groun member's financial stalements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure confarmity with the group’s acsourting
policies,

Thie consolidaled linancial slalements hive besn preganed on the Rollowing basis:

(a) Caombine like items of assets, liabilitias. eguity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parant with thoss of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and
axpenzas of the subsidiary sme besed on the amounts of tha assats and labilites recoqnized in the consolidsted financial stetements &t tha acquisition
date.

3] Oftset (elimimate] the carrying amounl af the parenl's investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion af equily of each subsidiary, Business

combinations policy explaing how to sccount Tor any related goodwill.

(e} Eliminate in full infragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expanses and cash flows ralating fo transachons betwean enbties of the group (profits or
lasses resulting Iom intragroup transactions thal ae recognized in assels, such a3 imentary snd Teed assels, are elirnated in full). Inlrsgraug lesses may
indicate an impairmant that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statemants. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that
arise from the elimmation of profits and losses resulfing from intragroup ransactions,
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Profit or loss and each component of ofher comprehensive income (OC1) are attributed o the equity halders of the parent of the Group and lo the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having @ deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments ame made Lo the inancial
staternents of subsidiaries to bAng thelr accounting policles inta line with the Growp's accounting policies, All Intra-group assets and Nabllties, equity,
incorme, expenses and cash Nows relaling o iransactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidalion excepd as slated in poinl (&)
above.

Investments in associate
Associales are all entibes over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the case where the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voling rights. Invesiments in Associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see (f) below), after initially

beang recognised at cosl

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at coat and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-
acuisition profits or lossas of the investes in profit and loss, and the Group’s share of ather comprehensive income of the investes in ofher comprehansive
Income. Dividends recaived ar recelvable from associates and Jolnt ventures sre recognised aa a reduction in the carmying amount of the investmernt. When
fhe Group's share of losses in en equily-accounted irmestment equals or excesds ils interest in the enlity, including any other unsecured long-term
recelvables, the Group does nof recognise further losses, unless it hae incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the oiher entity, Unrealised
gains on transactions batween the Group and its associates are eliminated 1o the extent of the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised lossas are also
aliminated unless the fransaction provides evidence of sn impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting pofickes of equity accounted investess have been
changed whers necessary o ensure consistency with the policies adopled by the Group, The carrying ameant of equily accounled imestments are lested
for impairment.

Changes in ownership interasts

The Group treats transactions with non-contralling interests that do not result in 8 lose of control ag transackons with eguity owners of the Group, A change
in ownership interest results in an adjustment belwean the carrying amounts of the contralling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the sulbsiciary. Any diference betyeen the amount of the adjustment lo nonecontrolling interests and any consideration pald or received is recognised
within ey,

When the Group ceases to consolidate ar equity account for an investment because of a lose of control, Joint control ar significant influence, any retained
Interest in the entity is remeaswred to lis fair value with the change In casmying amount recognised in Consolidated Profit and Loss. Thig falr value becomes
tha initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequentty accowunting for the retained interest as an associate, jeint venture or financial assst. In addition,
any amounts praviously recognised in olher comprehensive intomea in respect of that antity are accounted for &8 if the Group had directly disposad of the
relaled assols o liabilities, This may mean thal amounts previously recognised in alher comprehensive incoma ang reclassibied o Consolidaled Stalement
of Profit and Loss,

If the cwnership interest In & joint venture oF an asscciale s reduced bul joint control o significant infleence IS retained, only @ properlionate share of the
amounts presiously recognised in olther comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropeiate,

The excess of cost to the Parent Company of {8 investment [nthe subsidiary over the Parent Company's portion of equity of the subsidiary Is recognised In
the Consolidated Financial Statements s Goodwill. Thie Goodwill iz tested for impairment &t the end of the financial year. The excess of Pament
Company’s portion of equity over the cost of investment as at the date of its investment is trealed as Capital Regerve,

The financial staternents of the subsidieries § associates used in consolidation are drewn upto the same reporting date as that of the Parent Company.

302  a) Following subsidiary companies and entities which are contolled by the Company are consolidated:

Country of incorporation Fanportion. of s Ry Misnest
Sr. Mo Name of the Company and principal place of Medurs of Principal Dot of bocoming
~ond biakisan activity As at 31 March | As at 31 March subsidiary
2023 2022
Subsidiary companies
1 Klcon International Limibed India Infrastructure Project |55 25% 55.25% 01.05.2011
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Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acossition method. The cost of an acouisition 15 measured s the aggregate of the consideration transfemed
measured at acquiaition date falr value and the amount of any non- controlling Interests in the acquire. For each busineas combination, the Group elects whether to

measuras the non- controlling interasts in the acquire at fair velue or at the proportionate share of the acquires's idenfifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed &5 incurmed.

AL the acouesition dale, the identifiable assels acquined and the liabilities assemed ane recognized al heir acquisibon date f2ic values, For 1his purpose. the liabdities
assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation snd they are measured gt their acguisibon fair values imespective of the fact that outfiow of
resources embodying economic benefits iz not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis
indicatad balow:

Defarred lax assols or liabililies, and the assets or liabilities related to smployes benefit arrangements are recognized and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12
Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employes Benafits, respactivaly

Whan the Group acouires a business, it assesses the financial assats and liabillies assumed for approoriate classiication and designation in accordance with the
cantraciual berms, economic circumslances and perinenlt conditions as al the acguisifion date

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of lhe aggregate of the consideration ransfermad and the amount recognized for non-controlling interasts, snd
By previous interest held, ower the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net asseis acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration fransferred, the Group re-assesses whether it hae correctly dentiflied gl of the assets acquired and all of the kabilties sssumed and reviews the
procodures used lo mMeasune he amaunts 1o be recognized at The acousition dale. If the reassessment alill resulls in an excess of e Fair walue af nel assels acquired
over the aggragate consideration transferred, then the gain s recognized in other comprehensive income (FOC) and accumulated in eguity as capital reserve
However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognizes the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairmaent losses. Far the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in & business
combination i, from the acquisition date, allocated lo each of the Group's cash generating wnits that are expected lo benafit from the combination, imaspective of
whether other assets or liabiliies of the acguiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unil lo which goodwill hae been allocaled is tesled for impairment annually, of more freguently when there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. If he recoverabile amount of he cash generaling il is less than ils carning amounl, the impainment 056 i allocaled lirsl o reduece The casrying amounl of

any goodwill allocated to the unit and then io the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the camying amount of each asset in the wnit. Ay impairment loss far
guodwill is recognized in profit or loss, An impairment koss recognized for goodwill is not revecsed in subsesguent periods,

Where goodwill has been allocated te a cash generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed
operabtion is included in the carrying emount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured
baged on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portian of the cash-generaling unit retained,

Business combinations invalving enlities or businesses under comman contral shall ba accounted for using the pooling of interests method - whenain:

{a} The asaets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their camying amounts.
[{1] The excess, if any, in the value of net assets and reserves to be vestad in the transferes company, would be credited to the 'Capital Reserve Account’.
(&) Mo adjustments are made to reflect falr values, or recognize any new assets or liabilities. The only adjusiments that are made are to harmenize accounting

podicies, The business combination has been restated from earlest period presented.

Foreign currencies

Functional and Presentation Currency

ltems included in the financial staternents of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic emvironment in which the Group operates ('the
functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupss (INR), which is Groun's funclional and presentation curmancy

Tranzaclions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions ane ranslated info the funclional currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gaing and lesses from
satflemeni of these transactions. and from iranslation of monetary assets and labiliies at the reporting date exchange rates are recognised in the Consolidated
Staterment of Profit and Loss except in case of certain long lemm loreign curmency monetary ilems where the Ineatment as under.

Mon maonetary ibema which are carried at historical cost denominated in forelgn currency are reported using the exchange rates at the dates of the transaction.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in ihe Consolidatled Statement of Prolil and Loss on a net bass
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305  Fair value measurement
Falr value iz the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transler & liability In an orderdy ranssction between market participants al ihe measurement
diste, Thee Fair vialue measurement is bised on the presumplion that the transaction te sell the assaet or transfer the liability takes place either:
I thar principal market for the asse or Babily, or
I thee arbence of @ principal markel, in (be most advantageous markel for the assel or labilily
The principal or the most advanageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The felr value of an asset or a kabilty i measured using ihe assumptions that market parbcipants would uss when pricing the sssat or labidity, assuming that market
participants act in thelr eccnomic best Interest.

A, fair value measurement of a non-financial Assat takes into account 8 market parlicipant's abdity ko generate economic benefits by wsing the asset in ile highast and
best use or by selling it te another marke! participant that would use the asset in s highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficiant data are available o measure feir value, maximizing the uss of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of uncbservable inputs,

Al amsels and linbdilies for which Tair value i$ messued or disclosed in the nancial slaterments are calegorized wilthin the fair value hisrarchy, descoribed o6 Tollows,
based an the lowest kevel inpuf that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whale:

Lewvel 1 - Cuabed (unadusted) market prices in active markels for identical assets or liabilities

Leval 2- Valuation techniques fior which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair walue measuwamant is diractly or indirecty observable

Lewal 3 Waluation techniques for which the lowest level input that (e significant to the fair value measurement (s unobsandahbla

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements en & recurring basis, the Group detesmines whether transfers  have occured between levels
in the merarchy by re-assessing categonization (basad on the lowsest level input that is significant te fhe fair value measurement as a whele) at the end of each
reporting pariod.

The Group's Managamen! delemines the policies and proceduwes Tor bath recuring 18ir valus maasurement, Bueh &% Sadvalive instruments and wiquotied linancial
assets measwed at fair value, and for non-recurring messwiement, such as assets held for distribution in discontnued operations,

At gach reporting dade, the Management analyses the movernents in ihe values of asseis and liabilities which are requred to be remeasured of re-assessed as per
the Group's accounting policies, For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agresing lhe information in the valuation
computation 1o contracts and other relevant documents,

Far the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assels and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of fhe asset
of liability and the bevel of the Fair value erarchy ag explained abave.
This note summanzes accounling policy for Tair wabue. Other Tair value related disdosures are given in the relevan noles.

L0E  Rewvenue recognition
Fevenue fram contracts with customer is recognised when confrol of the goods of services are transferred bo the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
ta which the Company expects to be entitad in exchange for those goods or services
Ind A% 115 "Revenue fram contracts with Customers” provides a8 control-based revenue recognition model and provides a five step application approach to b
followed for revenus recognibion.

A Iderlify fhe contract{s) with customer;

B) Idenlify he performance obligalions;

C) Determine e transaclion price,

0} Allecale the transeclion price 1o the performance obligations;

E) Recognise revenue when or as an entity satisfies perdormance obligation.

Rewenue from operations
Sale of goods
Ravanue from sale of goods |a recognissd nat ol indirec taxes,

Erection and commissioning, Claims including escalation charges and Conlractual liquidated damages

Rewanue on arection and commissioring of contracts is recognised on the ‘Percentage of complation mathod’. Claime including escalabon sne recognised 88 ravenue
on clienl's acceptance or evidence of acceptance, Contraciual liguidated damages payable for delays in complefion of confract wiork or for olher causes are
accourted for at costs when deducied, andior when such delays and causes are attibutable fo the Comany

LOT  Otherincome:
Interest incoma
Under Ind AS108, Interast income s recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carmying amount of finencial assets other than credis-
impaired assets and financial assets classified as measwrad at fair value throwgh Profit and loss (FYTPL)

Renlal mdode arising om operabing lease on imvestment property s actounlad for on a stiraghl-line basis over the lease lenm,

Dividend Incame
Dividend incomse from investments is recogresed when the shareholdars’ nights to receive payment have been establishad,
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308 Taxes

i) Currant income tax

Current income lay assets and Labilities are measured gt the amount expactad fo be recoverad from or pald to the taxation authariies. The lgx rates and
tax laws used io compute the amount are those that ere enacted or substantvaly enacted by the end of the reporting paricd in the countrias where the

Company oporales and generales laxahle income,

Current income laxges are recognized In profit or losa excepl to the exlant that the tax relates to bems recognized outside profit or loss, either In other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Managerent periodically evaluates position taken In fhe t&x refurns wilh respect o sibsations in which
applicable tax regulations are subjected to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

1 Deferred iIncome tax

Delerred income lax assels and labilities are recognized for all temporary diferences between he By bases of assels and liabilities and [heir carrying
amounts in the financial statements.

The carrying amount of deferrad taw asseds is reviewed at each reporting date and reducad o the axtant that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the defered fBx asset to be wiilized. Unrecognized deferrad tax assets are re-assessed st each

reparting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that fulure taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recoverad.

Deferred te assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates thal are expecled to apply in the peniod in which the liability ks settled or the asset realized,
based on ta rates (and taod laws) that have been enacled or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of defermed tax liabilitics
and assels reflects the tax consequences hal would Tollow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, 1o recover or selile the

carrying amount of i1z assets and labilities.

Deferred income tax assets is recognized to the extent that it is probable that fubure taxable profit will be available egainst which the deductible temporary
differences and tax loss can be utilized.

Dolerred tax assels and labilities are alfse! when there i & legally enforceable right 1o sal off current lax assels against currenl bax liabilitics and when they
ralate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to setile its current tax assets and labilities on a net basis.

iy The Minimum Altamative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized &8 an assat only when and 1o the extent there is comvincing avidence that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specifiad period. In the year in which the Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT] credit bacomes eligible io be recognized as an
a=set in accordance with the recommendations conteined in guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by
way of @ credit to the statement of profit and [ose and shown ag MAT Credit Entitlernent. The Company reviews the same gt each balance sheel date and
writes dawn the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement {o the extent there i no longaer convincing evidence 1o the effect that the Company will pay

normal income tax during the specified penod.

308 Property, plant and equipment
Propedy, planl and equipment is staled al eost less accumadaled depreciation and where applicable aceumulaled impairment losses, Cosl inchudes expendilure thal is
directly attnibulable ko the acquisition of the assel. The cost of self-constructed assets includes (he cost of materals, direct labour and any other costs desctly
atiributabla te bringing the assst to & working condition for its intended wse, and the costs of dismantiing and remowing the items and restoring the sie on which they
ara located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of tha related equipment is capitalized as part of that aguipment.

Wihen pars of an ilem of property, plant and equipment have differen uselul lves, they gre accounted for 25 separale ilems (major comgonents) of property, plant
and equipmeant.

Subsequent Cost

Subseguent costs are induded [n the assel's carrying amount of recognised 85 a separale asset, as appropeiate, only when it is probable that fulure econormic
benefils assocaled with the llem will low lo e Group and the coal of the fem can be measured reliably, The carrying amount of any comgonent accouned Tor as 2
saparate assat is derecognised when replacad. All olher repairs and maintenance are charged fo Consofidated Staterment of Profit and Less during the reporting
paricd in which they are incurmed.

Capital Wark in Progress (CWIP) includes cost of property, plant and equiprment under irstallation [ under development, &8 at balance sheet date, All project related
axpandilure iz, civil works, machinery under erection, construction and erection materials. precperative expenditure incidental | atiributable 1o the construction of
projects, borrowing cost incured prior to the date of commercial operations and trial run expanditure are shown under CWIP. These expensas are net of recoveries
and income {net of 1ax) rem surplus funds arising oul of project specific berawings.,

An assel’s carrying amount is wrillen down immedialely bo its recoverable amoant if the assel's carrying amount i greater than ils eslimaled recoverable armound,
Property, Plant and Equipment are aliminated from the Consolidated Financial Statements, either on disposal or when retired from active use.

Gains and losses on disposals or retirement of assets are determined by comparing proceeds with camying amount. These are recognized in the Consclidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation

Property, Plant and Equipment have been depreciated under straight line mathod (except in case of Xicon International Limited, the depraciation has been providad
on written down valee method) a3 per the useful life and in the manner prescribed in Schedule 1 to the Act.
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Intanglble assets
Intangible assels that are acguired by the Company, which have finite useful lifes, are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
lesses, Gosl includes expendilure thal is directly atiribatable 1o the acquisition of e inangitle assel

Subsequent expenditune

Subsequent expenditure |5 capitalized anly when if increases The fulure economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates, All other sxpenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, are recognizad in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation of imMangibbe assels wilh finite usedul lives

Asset class Useful life as per Amertisation method
managemant
Corputer softwane 3- 6 years Amcrigation on straight line bagis

Amortisation methods, usefu lves and residual valuas are reviewad at sach reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Derecoqnition of assels
Anilem of intangible asset and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal o when no fulure economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain of loss arsing on derecognition of the asset = included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Amaortisation Method:
Compuler software is amortized under the straight line method over a period of 3 - & years for which the Group expects the benefits to accree.

Borrowing costs

Borowing costs directly attribulable fo the acquisilion, construclion or production of an assel thal necessarily lakes a substantial pericd of lime lo gel ready Tor ils
intandad wse or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset All other borrowing costs are expensad in the period in which they ooour. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and ofher cosie that an entity incurs in connection with the bomowing of funds. Bommowing cost also includes exchange differencas to the axtent
ragarded &5 an sdjusiment b the barrowing costs.

Interest income earmed an the temporary imvestment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on gualifying assets is deducted fram the bommowing costs
eligible for capitalization.

Inventories:

1] Invantories are valued at weighted average method or net realizable value whichever i$ lower, Obsolele, defective and unserviceable stocks are proviged
los, whendver required,

i Work in process includes material cost, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition

i) Stores and spares are charged [ writhen off to the manutaduring and operating expenses in the year of purchase

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of basiness, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated cosls necessary to make
U ilee,

Provisions, contingent labliities and contingent assets

Prowvisions for legal claims and rstums are recognised when the Groug has 8 present legal or constructive abligation 8s a result of past events, It 15 probable that an
outflow of resources will be reguired to settle the obligation and the amount can be rellably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required o setile the present obligation at the end of the reporting
penod. The discount rate wsed 1o determine the present valwe is & pre-tax rate that reflects curment market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
spacific to the liability. The increase in the provision due 1o the passage of ime is recognised as finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confimed by the ccourrence or non-occurrence of one or Mo e
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obdigation that is not recognized becawse it is probable that an outflow of resources will not be
required to settle the obligation. However, if the possibility of outflow of resources, arlsing oud of present obligation, Is remote, it s not even disclosed B3 contingent
liability.

A contingent labllity aleo arlses in extremely rare cases where there |3 a liability thet cannot be recogmzed because It cannot be measured reliably, The Group does
nol recognize 8 contingent llability but discloses it existence In (he nodes o Consolidated Financial Statements. A Contingent assst s not recognized in Consolidated
Financial Statements, howewer, the same i disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.
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{a) Impairment of financial assels
Exprched cradit losses are recognized for all inancial assets subsequent o initial recognstion other than financial agsets in FYVTPL category.

For financial assets other than irade recelvables, 88 per Ind AS 108, the Group recognizes 12 month expecied credit losses for all onginated or acguired financial
assels |f at the reporting date the credit dak of the financlal asset has nol increased significantly since itg instial recognition. The expected credil losses are messunsd
as lifetime expected credit losses If the credit fak on financlal assets increases significantly since iie initial recognition. The Group's trade receivables do nod contain

significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured &t an amount egual 1o life ime expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognizad in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b} Impairment of nen-financial asaets

The Group assesses, al each reporting date, whether there is an indication thal an asset may be impaired. I any indication exists, or when annual imairment testing
for &an asset 3 required, the Group estmates the assel's recoverable amount, An asset's recoverable amount |s the higher of an asset’s or cash-gensrating unil's
(CEU) falbr value lesa costs of disposal and its value In use. Recoverable amount |8 determined for an individual asset. unless the asset does not gensrate cash
Inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Group's assets. When the carrying amount of an asset of CGU exceeds lis recoverable amournt, the

assel s considersd impaired and s wiitlen down 10 it recoverable amount.
Financial instrumants

Financial assels
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party fo the contraciual provisions of the instrument.

On inibial recognitan, a financial asset s recognized at fair value, In case of Financial assets which are recogmized &t falr value through profit and loss (FYTPL), s
transaction cost are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to the acguisiion value of the financial assst

Subseqguent measuremaent
Financial assets are subsaquently classified as measwed at

amorized cost: Financial assels that are hald within a8 business model whose objective i§ to hold financial assels in order to collect contractual cash flows thatl are
solely paymenis of principal and interest. are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate ('EIR") method less impairment, if any. The
amoriization of EIR and loss arsing from impairment, i any is recognized in the Slatement of Profit and Loss,

fair valug through profit and loss (FVTPL): A financial assed nol classified a8 either amortized cost or FYOCI, is classified as FYTPL. Such financial assais ara
measured at fair walue with all changes  in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as 'other income’ in the Statement of Profit and
Loss,

fair value through ofher comprahensive income (FVYOCI): Financial assets that are hald within a business model whose objective is achieved by bath, selling financial
assels and collecting condrachsal cash flowe thal are solely payments of prncipal and inlerest, are subsequently measured at Tair value through alber comprehensive
income. Falr value movements are recognized In the other comprehensive incame (OC), Interest income measured using the EIR method and impalrment losses, If
any are recognized inthe Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or lesa previously recognized in OC is reclassified from the equity o ‘other

income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, excapt if and in the period the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Dbt Instrumants:
Dabl instruments are initially measured at amorlized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ('FYOCT) or fair value throwgh profit or lose ('FYTPL'} Gl
derecognition on the basis of (1) the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and (il) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset,

{a) Measured al amartized cost Financial assets that are held within & business model whose objective 13 to hold financial assets in omer to collect contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subseguently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate ('EIR") method
less impaimment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statemsent of Profit and Loss.

(k) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income; Financial assels thal ane held within a business model whose objective 1§ achieved by bath,
selling inancial assels and collecting conlraciual cash fows hal are solely payments of principal and interesl, are subsecuenlly measured at Tair value

through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehansive income (QCH). Interest income measured using the
EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in QCI is reclassified from the equity 1o ‘other income’” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ic) Measured at falr value through profit or logs: & financial asset nol classified as either amorbized cost or FYOCI, Is classified as FYTRL, Such financial

assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as 'other income’ in the

Saternent of Profil and Loss,
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Equity Instruments:

All Investments In equity Instruments classifled under financial assels are initially measured at fair velue |, the Group may, on initial recognition, Irevocably elect {o
maasura the same either at FVDC| or FYTPL.

The Group makes such election on an instrumeant-ky-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity nstrument 1s recogmized as olher income In the Statement of
Profit and Loas unless the Group has slected to measure such instrumant at FVOCH, Falr value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrumsent measured at
Fv O are recognized in QCl. Amounts recognized in OC| are not subsequently reclassified to the Staternent of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments

in equity instruments are recognized as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Trade Receivables and Loans:
Trade recsivables and loans are initially recognized st fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
net of any expected cradit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life of financial instrument.

Deracognition
The Group derscognizes a inancal assel when the contractual nghts ta the cash flows from the financial assel expire, or 1 transfers the contractual rights to receive
the cash flows from the asset.

Fimancial Liabilities:
Imitial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilites are recognized when the Group becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrumendt. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the

amortized cost unless at inital recognition, they are classified as falr value theough profit end loss, In case of trade payables, they are inltially recograzed at falr
value and subseguendly, these labiliies are held al amertized cost, using the effective interest method,

Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilitiss at amortized cost: After initial measurament, auch financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interast rale

{EIR} mathod. Amartized coat is calculated by taking into account anmy discount of pramium an acquisiion and fees or costs that are an intagral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loas.

({a) Bormowings:

Borrowings are intially recognised al falr value, net of transaction costs incurmed, Borrowings are subsequently measured al amortised cost. Any difference between
thea proceeds (net of transaction costs) end the redemption amount is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the horrowings
using the effective inerest rate method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities ere recognised as fransaclion cosis of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that same ar all of the facility will be drawn down. [0 this case, the fee s deferred wntll te draw down ocours, To the exdent there 18 no evidence that it is
prohable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised a3 & prepayment for liguidity services and amorised over the perocd of the facility o
which it relates.

(b} Trade and Other Payahles:

These amounts reprasent labililies Tor goods and services provided 1o the Group prior 1o the end of fnancial year which are unpaid. Trade and olher payables ars

presented as curent llabllifles unless payment Is nol due within 12 months after the reporiing perod. They are recognised Initially at thelr falr value and subsequenily
measurad al amorlised cost using the ellective interest rate method.

ﬁ::aﬁf:::ility is deracognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expiras. When an exisfing financial liability is replaced by
anothar from the same lender on substanfially different terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such en exchange or modification is
freated as the derecognition of the original lability and the recognitien of & new liability

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Consolidaled Statement of Profil and Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount s reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention fo settle on & et basis or realise the asset and sette the liability simultansously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and In the event of default, Insclvency or bankruntey of the Group or the
counlerparty.
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Employees Benefits
i) Defined contribution plans (Provident Fund and employee state insurance schema)

In accordance with Indian Law, eligible employess recaive benafils from Provident Fund, which is defined contribution plan, Both the emgloyes and employer makes
monthly contributions to he plan, which is administrated by the Government authoribies, each equal to the specific percentage of employee's basic salary. The Group
hag no furlher obligation under (he plan beyond il manthly contributions, Okligation for contributions to The plan i recognized as an employes benefil cxpense in e

Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred.

ii) Defined benefit plans (Gratuity)
The Group has a defined benefit plan namely Gratuity Tor all ts employees in the form of Growg Gratuity ~curme Life Assurance Scherme, The liakdity for the defined

banafit is determined on the basis of valuation made under the scheme at year and, which is calculated using the projected unit credit mathod.

Gains and losses through remeasurement of the defined benefits obligebons is reflected in the balance sheet with & charge or credit recognized in other
comprehensneg income in the pedod in which they otour, Remeasurement recognized in olber comorehensive income i rellected immedialely in relained carmings
and will not be reclassified to the statemsant of profit and loss.

iii} Short term benefits
Short lerm employes benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed ag a related senice provided. A labllty s recognized for the

amount expected to be peid under short term cash bonus or profit sharing plans if the Group hes & present legal or constructive obligation to pay thie amount &5 a
rasult of past sarvice provided by the employes and the obligation can be astimatad raliably.

iv) Leave encashment
Liabidlities recognised in respect of shoet-term employee benefits are measured ai the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected io be paid in exchange for the
relaled service. Liabilites recognised in respect of ather long-lerm employes benefils ane measured al e present value of thie esimaled fuleee cash oulllows

expecied to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employess up to the reporting date. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over
e perod of employment using the same accounting methodology as used for defined benefit retirement plans. Actuanal gains and losses arsing from experience
adjustmants and changes in actuarial assumplions are charged or credited to the statemant of profit and less in the period in which they arse. These obligations ara
valued annually by independent qualified sciuaries.

v) Code on Social Security, 2020

T Indiaan Parament haa agoroved the Cotle on Social Security, 2020 which would imgact the contribulions By (he comaany lowards Provident Fund and Graluly.
T Ministry of Labowr and Ermployment hes rebeased drafl ndes for the Coge on Sccial Security, 2020 on MNovermber 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions fram
stakeholders which are under active congideration By The Ministry, The Company and its Indian subsidianies will assess the impact and 13 evaluation once the subject
rules are natified and will give appropriate impact |n its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules lo determing the
Timancial imgact are published

Leasa

As 3 lesses:
The Group evaluates IT an arrangement gualifies o be a lease &5 per the requirements of Ind AS 118, Identification of a lease requires significant judgment, The

Group uses significant judgment in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both pericds covered by an oplion to extend the lease if the Group is
reasanably certain lo exercise thal option; and periods covered by an option fo terminate the lease i the Group 13 reasonably certain not to exercise thal oplicn, In
assessing whether the Group is reasonably cerain fo exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option fo terminate a lease, it considers all relevant
Tacts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the opion o extend the lease, or not to exercise the option o terminate the
lease. The Group revises e lease term if there (s & change in the non-cancellatle period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of lesses with similar characteristics.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a comesponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which
It Is a lessee, excepd for leases with a term of twebve montha or legs (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these shor-term and low value leases, the Groug

recognizes the leass payments as an operaling expenss on a straight-line basis over the term of the leass.

As a lessor:

Leases under which the Group does not fransfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified &= operating leases. Rental income arises from
opaerating leases is accounted for on strasght-line basis cver the lease term, and is included in rental income in Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the increase is in
ling with expectad general inflation, in which casa lease income is recognised based on confractual terms. Contingent renis are recognised as revenue in the peried in
which they are eamead.
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Cash and cagh equivalents
Cagh and cash equivalent in the balance sheel comgrise cash al banks which are subject Lo an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Faor the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents consist of cash and shor-term deposits, as defined above, a3 they are considered an
Integral part of the Group's cash management,

Earnings per share
Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the net profit far the period aftributable o the equity sharehclders of the Groug by the weighted sverage number of

equity shares outstanding during the pericd, The welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the penod and for all periods presented s adjusted for
awents, such 85 bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential eguity shares that have changed the number of eguity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources

Far the: purpose of calculating dilubed eamings per share, the mel profit for the period attributable lo equity sharebolders and the weighted average number of shanes
outstanding during the period |s adjusted for the effects of all dilutwe potential equity shares,

Sagment Reporting:
Based an "Managameant Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker avaluates the Company's performance and

allocates the resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments.
Sagment Policies:

The Company prepares e segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the
Comgany as a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated fo each segment on an appropriabe basis

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Tha Group had two primary business segmeants which are as follows:

Kaiser Corporation Limited
Printing of labeds, packaging matarials, Magazines and articles of stationery.

Xicon International Limited
Turnkey Project Management and Engineering services,

Infermation about Primary {Product Wise) Segment:

(¥ in Lakhs)
Sr. Mo. Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 |Segment revenue
Revenue from operations
&)} Printing 58.37 57.04
b} Infrastructure Projact 1.848.39 3,267.44
1,903.76 3,324.49
Less: Inter segment revenue {19.03) {19.60)
Met revenue 1,884.73 3,304.89
2 Result
Segment result before Finance cost and Tax
a) Printing 1.05 4,54
b} Infrastructure Project 166.09 227,16
169.12 231.70
Less: Finance costs 111.82 20,25
Exceptional ltems; Loss on cassation of an Associate Company - -
Share of profit [{loss) of associata -
Profit ! {Loss] before tax and minority interest S7.30 141.45
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(% in Lakhs)
iy 5r. Mo. Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Other information
Segment assels
a) Printing 2561 2674
b) Infrastructure Project 3,608.33 2.862.24

3,633.94 2,888.98
Add: unallocable commaon assets 210.70 211.84
Total assets 3.844.64 3,100.82
Segment liabilities
a) Printing 16.20 V.68
b Infrastructure Project 1,766,508 1,481.21

1.762.79 1,488.89
Add: unallocable commaon liabilities 5.92 19.03
Total liabilities 1.788.71 1,507.93
Capital Expenditure during the year
a) Printing 0.50 014
b} Infrastructure Project B.26 1239
Total Capital Expenditure B.75 12.53
Depreciation and amartisation
a) Printing 0.15 0.24
b Infrastructure Project 20,25 20.39
Total Depreciation and amortisation 20.40 20.64
Other non-cash expenditure

B. Geographical Segments
Particulars Geographical segments
Outside India Within India
Seagmeant Revanuea 928.09 95333
(1,356.60) {1,948.29)

31 Contingent liabilities

{ Amount in Lakhs)

IFurlil:ulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
|_f'| Contingent Liabilities
etter of credit

47313 204.28
Outstanding Bank Guarantess issued by bankers on bahalf of the Company.

47513 204.28
|8} Capital Commitment
Estimated amownt of contracts remaining to be executed on capital acoount 15.00 5.00
and not provided for (net of advance of Rs. 15 Lakhs, Previous Year Rs. 5
|Lakhs)

15.00 5.00

32 Related party disclosures

i) Related party relationships:

Significant Control Heat Trace Xicon Limited (w.e.f 28 September 2019}
r.Bhushanlal Arora (Managing Director)
Mrs Jimal Patani (Company Secratary)
Key management personnel Mr. Hemant K Talapadatur (Director)
Mr. V.G, Mukund {Director)
Mrs. Lyla Jamshesd Mehta (Chief Financal Officer)
Hotes:

The relationships as mentionsd above partain to those related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year.
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Transactions with related parties:

Disclosura in redation to transaction with related parlies

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022

Director's remuneration

Bhushanlal Arora 18.18 17.62
Remuneration paid to KMP other than Director

Miss Jinal Patani (Company Secretary) 2.59

Mr. Privanka Charturved (C5 Previous Year) 251
Consultancy Paid to Director
Y G Mukund 817 BET
Advance given

Mr.Bhushanlal Arora -

Sales of goods

Heat Trace Xicon Limited 2.83 1.56
Purchase of goods

Heat Trace Xicon Limited 2233 4566
Rent Received

Heat Trace Xicon Limited 240 240
Expense Incurred on their behalf

Heat Trace Xicon Limited 3.60 347
Loan taken from Director

Hemant K Talapadatur 36.50 -
Loan repaid to Directors

Hemant K Talapadatur 20,00 -

Balances with related parties:

Particulars

Far the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Advance recoverable
EMr.Elh.rsrmnlal Arcea

Trade Payable

Heat Traces Xicon Ltd 268,74 4360
Trade Recelvable

Heat Traces Xicon Ltd 0.30 1.80
Others

WG 353 1.50
Hemant K Talapadatur 1.46 0.59
Invastmant in Equity Shares

\Heat Trace Xicon Limited 5.97 .34
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33 Ratio
Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current Assets
Invenlories 645,16 36.68
Trade Receivable 080,89 1.807.089
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5.80 1893
Other Financial assets 130,39 85.65
Qther Current Assets SE0.30 418.53
Current Assets (A) 342254 2 647 88
Current Liabilities
Borrowings 102442 576.13
Trade payables 1344 67 1,264 04
Oither linancial liabilites BOL3T G065
Crthar Current Liabilities 40,70 15076
Provisions 8.50 2710
Currenl Linbililies (B) 2785, 54 2.078.85
Current Ratle (Current Assets/Current Liabllities) 1.22 127
Dabt- Equity Ratio
Debt’ Equity Capital 147 085
Dabt Services Coverage Ratio
Met Profit before Taxes 57.30 141.45
Depreciation 20,40 20.64
Mt Qperating Income ¥r.T0 162.09
Debt Services Coverage Ratio 0.08 028
Inventory Turnover Ratio
Inventony Gd5. 16 3668
Tusrnonear 1884.73 3,304 .89
Inventory Turnover Ration 292 1044
Trade receivables Turnovaer Ratio 031 1.83
{ Turnowver'Dettors )
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 1.40 2.61
(TurnoyerCreditons)
Het Capital Turnowver ratlo 271 4.8
{ Talal Sales! Equity Share Capital)
HNet Profit Ratio 0.0 0.03
{Met Profit after Taw' Turnover )
Raturn On Capital Employed
Earming befare IMerest and tax 188.51 252 33
Total Eqguity GE5.87 GHRO11
Return on Capital Employed 027 0.37
{ EBIT! Tatal Equity)
34 Shareholding of Promoters

Share Held by Promoters at the and of the year % Change during the year
Promoter Name Wo of Shares % of Total Shares
PASK Holdings Limited TE.65 14.95%
Amav Enterprises Limited T7.00 14 63%
PRIT Hi-Power Private Limited 58.71 11.16%
H L Rochat Engg Private Limited 53.54 10.17% WO CHANGE
Parsiana Publications Pvi Litd 23.62 4.49%
Veara Patel 0.30 0.06%,
Jehangir Fatel 0.28 0.06%
Lyla Mehta 0.03 0.01%
Total 29214 55.53% =
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35 Retirement bensfits
a) (a) Defined contribution plan

The following amount recognized as an expense [n Statement of profit and logs on account of provident fund and other funds. There are no other
obligations ather than the contribution payable o the respective authorities.

(Amount in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contribution to providant fund and athar defined confribution funds 5.8989 9.80

k) The Company has a defined benefit plan namely Gratuity for ell its employees in the form of Group Gratuity -cum- Life Assurance Scheme. The liability
far the delined benefitl is determined on the basis of valuabion made under Ihe scheme al year end, which is calculaled using Ihe projecled unil credit
method
The retirement banefit chligations recognized in the balance sheel represents the prasent value of the defined benefit obligations as adjusted for
unrecognized past servics cost.

The fallowing table sels out the fundad slatus of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognized in the Company’s financial stalements as at 31 March
2023

( Amount in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended

Particulon 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

Change in present value of obligation

Prasant value of abligation as at 1 April 35.36 33.16
Interast cost 240 210
Service cost 329 340
Beneafits paid -2.02 -3.73
Actuarial {gain)iloss on chlgation -8.32 0.43
Present value of obligation as at 31 March 30.71 35.36
Reconciliation of plan assets

Plan assets as at baginning of the year 3388 2580
Expected retum on plan assets 218 1.83
Contributions during the year 410 6,54
Adjustment 010 00
Benafits paid -2.01 -373
Actuarial (gains) losses (.00 0,00
\Plan assets as at the end of the year 38,32 30.40)
Amount recoanised in the Balance Sheet

Prasent value of obligation, as at 31 March 30.71 35,36
Fair value of plan assels as al 31 March 3852 30.40
Liabilities recognisaed in the Balance Sheet -T.61 4.96
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost 128 140
Imerest cost 240 210
Expected refum on plan assets =222 =162
Total expense charged to profit and loss account [before tax] [A] 3.47 3.68

Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Remeasurement during the period due to :
Actuarial loss [ (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions. -83.25 0,37

Actuarial loss { (gain) arising from changs in demographic assumplions
Actuarial loss { (gain) arising on account of experience changes

Amount recognised in OCI [before tax] [B] -8.25 0.37
Closing ameunt recegnised in OC| and profit and loss [A+E] -4.78 4.05
Met liability is bifurcated as follows :

Current =761 4.96
Mon-current 0,00
Met liability -T.61 496
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Actuarial assumptions used in calgulations of gratuity is as under:

Particulars Sk REat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Discount rate 7.18%-7.3% 6.55%-7.30%
Expeactad return on plan assets T%-7.8% 7T 8%
Expectad rate of salary increase 5-T% 5-T%
Attriation rate 1'1{'3‘?':';32“'3““9 1"““’2::;'“:1:1'“5
Retirement Age 58 Years ShYears

. LIC (2008-08) LIC (2006-08)
Mortality Ultimate Ultimate

36 Trade Payable Ageing schedule
(Amount in Lakhs)

Ofs for f-::-rllarwing periods from due date of payment
One to two Two to Three Maore than
Particulars LRIE Than e Yo Years Years Three Years not

1. MSME 280 237 - - 527
2, Others TH5 67 411.84 3,85 134,94 1,336.40
3. Disputed Dues- MSME 2 B & < i
4, Disputed Dues- Others - - = & 5

Total : T788.57 414.21 3.95 134.94 1,341.67

37 Trade Receivable

{Amount in Lakhs)
O/s for following periods from due date of payment
One to two Two to Three More than
Particulars Less Than cne year year Years Three Years Total

1. Undisputed Trade Receivable 731.16 48023 433.50 426.00 2,080,839
2. Undisputed Trade Receivable - - - & :

3. Disputed Trade Receivable considerad - - - - -

4, Disputed Trade Receivable considered
Doubtful  (Refer Debtor sheet)

Total : 731.16 490.23 433.50 426.00 2,080.89

38 Fixed Assets

a) The company maintain the Fixed assets register and details of Physical location and quantity are properly maintain by the company.
b} The company annual basis take the physical count of the Fixed assets and there is no discripancy in the report.
C) The Immovable property of Subsidiary company as per fixed assels schedule kindly find the disclosure for title deed in name of the
Subsidiary company.

(Amount in Lakhs)

SrNo Discription of item of Grass camying value Title deeds in the name of
property company
1 Leasshold Land 19.08 Xicon Intermational Ltd.
Office Premises 5277 Xicon Intermational Ltd.
3 |Buildings 135.89 Xicon International Lid.

d} There Is no proceeding initiated or pending against the company both holding ane subsidiary for holding any benami property under
the benami transaction Act 1988
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

Inventory

taken my the management. There is no Discrepancy notice while in books of account and inventory report.

{Amount in Lakhs)
The inventory record of the both the company e holding and subsidiary are properly maintained and guarterdy physical count has been

The Subsidiary company ( Xicon International Limited) has borrowing from bank on the basis of security of stock and trade receivable |
There Is varance in quarterdy return filed with the bank and as audited figure of Subsidiary company.

Particulars As per Book As per Bank Difference Reason
1 Stock 64516 64516 0.00
2  |Debtors 208624 2158.12 (91.88)| Refer Note No. 1 (a & b)
3 |Creditors T75.06 775.08 0.00{Refer Note No. 1 (c)

MNote No. 1 : - The variance in Debtors & Creditors as per submitted stock statement to the bank is due to the following reasons :

Mote for Daebtors

a. Provision for ECL Rs. 57.39 (Less in Books value)

b. Bad Debts - Balance Write off Rs. 34 49
Mote for Creditors

c. Note Mo. 19 - Trade Payable includes Creditors for Expenses, Contractors, Sub-contractors, Professional, Consumables,

Rent, Transporters & Others.

Financial instruments- Fair values and risk management
The carrying valug and fair value of financial instruments by categaories as of March 31, 2023 are as follows ©

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars At amortised At fair value At fair value Total Tatal fair value
costs through profit | through OCI carrying
and loss value
Assets
Investments 0.09 - 547 .06 6.06
Trade receivables 2.080.85 - - 2,080.89 2,080.89
Cash and cash equivalents 5.80 - - 880 5.80
Bank balancas other than above 106.08 106.08 106.08
Current Loans - = - - -
Other non-current financial assets - - - - -
Other current financial asseks 24.30 - - 24.30 24,30
2.217.16 - 5.97 2,223.14 2,223.14
Liabilities
Mon-current borrowings - - - - -
Current borrowings 1,024.42 - - 1,024 .42 1.024.42
Trade payables 1,.341.67 - - 1,341.67 1,341.67
Other currant financlal llabilites 80.37 - - 80.37 a80.ar
2,446.45 - - 2,446.45 2,446.45
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2022 are as follows {Amount In Lakhs}
Particulars At amortised At fair value At fair value Total Total fair value
costs through profit | through ©CI carrying
and loss value
Assets
Investments 0.04 - 8.34 8,38 9.38
Trade recavablas 1,B07.09 - - 1,807.09 1,807.08
Cash and cash equivalents 18.93 - - 18.93 18.93
Bank balances other than above 3642 3642 3642
Current Loans - - - - -
Other non-current financial assets - - - - -
Other current financial assels 4822 - - 4922 49 22
1,911.70 - 9,34 1,921.04 1,921.04
Liabilities
Mon-current borrowings - - - - -
Currant borrowings 57613 - - 5T6.13 576.13
Trade payables 1.264.01 - - 1,264.01 1.264.01
Other current financial liabilities 6065 - = 60.65 B0.65
1,200.79 - - 1,900,79 1,900.79
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Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities as of 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

As of 31 March|Fair value measurement at end of the reporting
2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

a) Assets measured at FVOCI
Unguoted investments
Investment in equity instruments of other entities

a) Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Quoted investments
Investment in equily instruments of other entities

b) Assets measured at FVTPL
Unquoted investments
Investment in equity instruments of other entities

587 - - 5.97

0.09 0.09

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

As of 31 March |Fair value measurement at end of the reporting|
2022 Lewvel 1 Leval 2 Level 3

a) Assets measured at FVOCI
Ungqueoted investments
Investment in equity instruments of other entities

a) Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Quoted investments
Investment in equity instruments of other entities

b) Assets measured at FVTPL
Unguoted investments
Investment in equity instruments of other entities

8.4 - - 9.34

0.04 0.04

Leases

Group as Lessor (In case of Xicon International Ltd.)

The Group has given premises on lease and license basis which Is renewable on mutual basis. The amount of
minimum lease incomea with respect to operating lease recognized in the statement of profit and loss for the
year is Rs. 2.4 Lakhs (31 March 2022: Rs.2.4 Lakhs).

Earnings Per Share

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
ETipta 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Met profit / {loss) 13.76 54.89
Weighted average 5,26,21,020 5,26,21,020
Face value of share 1.00 1.00
Basic and diluted 0.03 0.10
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44 (n) Additional informaticn &= requined under Schedule |1 io the Compankes Act 2013, of enterprises cor d as Subsidiary Companies! Assooinbes:
{Ameunl bn Lakha)
Met Assets Share in profit or loss __Share in Other comprehesive income | Share in Total comprehesive
Particulars A T of As T o A % o A%t
Consolidabed ned Amound Consolidabed Amipunt Consolidated predit Ameund Consolidated Amount
assais profit or koss or oEs profit or boss
Parent Company :
Kaisar Corporation LimBad A5 26% 473,77 14,60r% k< i ] AT 84% 064 15.00% 434
Subsidiary Companies:
al Inclian
1. Kicon Inbematonal Limiled b=k H18.19 56.32% 14.28 Ards 1.38 B2 95% LT
Adjustmant arising out of consolldatkon (56, 7% (52 88y 116, 5% (4,18 (14, 5%) [4.18)
Assoclabes
a] Irndean
i Higal Tracs Xicon Limsbed - - [ - 0% 2 0% -
[T Gah.AT 54.08% 14.76 55.20% 2.00 . a8% 15T
Mon-contralling inferesis in Subsidiary J2.48% 3081 45 B 11.4b 44 78% 162 45 558% 1347
Company
Male: Amount of rel assels ane before considening inkercompany elimination.
ik Salismi Features of Fi inl Stal of Subsidiary Companies s per Companies Act, 2013 [pursuant to firet proviss to sub-gection (3) of seclion 120 resd with rule 5 of Companiss
(Aczounis) Rules, 2014:
Part “A" : Bubsidiaries [Amount in Lakhs
Sr. Mame of Subsidiary Company Reporting Share Capital | Cther Equity Total Asseis Total Liabitties 3 Twrnowverd Profit Before
Ho. Currancy Todal Incame Taxaticn
|l]'| Xioan Ingsmational Limited IMR, 30916 506,03 4,608.33 278315 5497 1,848.3% GE 84
1A tin Lakhs)
Provigion fer Profil Aflae Prisf | | % ol Sharshalding
Tamation Taxation Diwidand
21.04 28.20 = A5 2Rk

1. Hamw of subsidianes which are yal o commenca cpembions - Nona
2 MWamas of subsidianes which have been liquidatsd or sald durrs thes year,  BNons

45 Critical accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainties

The preparation of the financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying
disclosures including the disclosure of contingent liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on a ongoing basis.They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Detailed information about each of these estimates, assumptions and judgements is included in relevant notes
together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item of financial statements.
However, the following are the key assumptions and other key sources of estimation uncertainty concerning the
future, at the end of the reporting year that may have a significant risk of causing a malerial adjustment to the
camrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial years.

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
year. The financial effect of this reassessment, assuming the asseis are held until the end of their estimated
useful lives, is an increase/decrease the depreciation expense in the current financial year and future years.

(ii) Fair value measurements and valuation processes:

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company uses appropiate valuation techniques for
valuation. Their fair value is measured using valuation technigues including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF)
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair value.
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(iii) Estimation of defined benefit obligation:

The cost of defined benefits plan including other post employment benefits and the present value of such
obligations are determined using actuanal valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developmenits in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All the assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

iv) Impairment of non-finanical assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

v} Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates, The Company used judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on Company’'s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

vi) Lease

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease
contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it
is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. It considers all relevant factors that
create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date,
the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

46 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS - 11 ‘Construction Contracts' relating to subsidiary company
{Amount in Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
Fciam 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Details of contract revenus

Contract revenue recognised during the year arrTa 1,661.74
Aggregate amount of contract cost recognised during Ehe wear 658.34 1,218.02
Amoum received for contracts in progress 558,96 1,282.50
Retantion maney for contrects in prograss .99 13577
Gross amaunt duws from customers for contract work (asset) 518.77 349,24

4T Balances of certain rade recaivables, rade payables and other financial assats are subject ko confinmation § recancilistion, i any. The management does not expect any malerial diffearencs
affacting tha financial statements an such reconciliabion ! adjestments,

48 In tha cpinion of managament, trada recesvables, loans and other financial assats have & value on realisation in the ardnary cowrsa of busness at least aqual ke the amount at which they
are slaled in lhe balance shest. The provision for depreciation and all known liabilities is adequale and nol in excess of the amoun! reasonably stabed.

49 Code on Focial Security, 2020:
The Indian Padiament has approved the Cose on Social Sacurily, 2020 which would impact fhe contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund and Graluity. The Ministry of Labour
and Ermployment has released draft miles for the Cods on Social Secuwrity, 2020 an Movember 13, 2020, and has inviied suggestons from stakeholders which ame under active consideration
bry thie Ministry. The Comgpany will assess the impact ard iks evaluation onee the subject rulee are notified and will glve appropriate impact in ils inancial statements in te peried in which,
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the Code becormes afaclive and the related rules o debanming the financial impacl ans published.

88 Reconcialation betwesn the opening and closing balances in the balance sheat for liabilittes and financial assets arising from financing activities:

{Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at Mon-cash change A at
3 March 2022 Acquisition | [Repayment) Foreign exchange Transaction 3 March 2023
ImEvement costs
_Short tarm borrowings 5TE.13 44829 = = 1,024 42

B1 Managemeant has conducled the physical verilicalion of Imventories as on 2 &gl 2025 and since theme is o recsipt & issues during the period 1 Apeil 2023 o 2 April 2023, lhe irmeniories
held on 2 April 2023 is hawing the same value as an 31 Manch 2023

52 Tha company | Holding and subsidiary) has nod gone any rensacion with companias strsck off under saction 248 Companies Act 2043
B3 The charge on assel thal b be regislered with ROC has been regislersd an fme as inform by managemen.

84 A= per tha management and those charge with the Goverancs has geen declaration that the campany is not dedared wilful defauler by any bank or fmancial instiuion or cfher lendaer,

E5 Events after the end of the reporting date
Mo subsacuent avant has bean absarved which may requre ary sdjustmant to the statement of financial posiban

56 Amounts for the year ended and as at 39 March 2022 were audited by auditors Shabbir & Rita Sssociates LLP

5T The Figures af the previous year have been regrouped, whenewver necessary io conform with the current year's preseriations.

Slgnatures fo Motas 1 1o 57

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP For and on behall of he Board of Direclors of
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Kaizer Corporation Limited
FIRM'S REG. NO. 108430W

Bhushanlal Arcra Rajendra Ramchandra Vaze
Managing Direclor Direclar
SHABBIR 5 BAGASRAWALA DK No. 00416052 DM Mo. 02244651
PARTHER
MEMEERSHIF NO. 0G0E665
Jinal Patani Lyla Jemsheed Mahta
Place : Mumbai Company Secratary Chisf Financial Offiger
Deate : Jirth May 2023 Mambership No, AG35E64
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
KAISER CORPORATIONLIMITED

REPORT ONTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of M/s Kaiser
Corporation Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) and the Cash Flow Statement
and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit and
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Ourresponsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor”s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the IND AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:
INFORMATION OTHER THAN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR"S REPORT THEREON

The Company”s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board™s Report including Annexures to
Board"s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor”s report thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
otherinformation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including Other
Comprehensive Income cash flows and changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company”s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also
responsible for overseeing the Company”s financial reporting process.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor”s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company”s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concem.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in Financial Statement that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial
Statement may be influence. We consider quantitative materality and qualitative factorsin |. Planning
the scope of our Audit work and in evaluating the result of our work and Il. To evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatement in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor®s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGALAND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1 As required by the Companies (Auditor”s Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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c)

d)

f)

g)

(1)

(1)

(iii)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive
Income and the Cash Flow Statement and Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 including Ind AS;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
ReportinAnnexure B

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have impact on its
financial position in its Standalone Financial Statements.

The Company has did not have any long—term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, ,no funds

(b)

(c)

h)

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Company or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or investin other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of
the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any
materal mis-statement.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor"s Report in accordance
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with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the managerial
remuneration paid or provided for by the company during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of Section 197(16) of the Act.

i) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023

For SHABBIR & RITAASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm"s Registration No. 109420W

Shabbir S Bagasrawala

Partner

Membership No. 039865

UDIN: 23039865BGWXJO5776
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2023
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"ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ,Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement” of
our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023,
we report the following:

1) a)(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
annually, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company
and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, the Property, Plant and Equipment
has been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies between the books records and the Property, Plant and Equipment have
been noticed.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us,
the company does not have any immovable properties and hence clause 3(i)(c) of this
orderis not applicable to the company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us
no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
Benami property under the "Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules
made thereunder.

2) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us the inventory has been
physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable. According to the information and
explanations given to us and as examined by us, no material discrepancies of 10% or
more in the aggregate for each class of inventory was noticed on physical verification of
stocks by the management as compared to book records on such verification.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets at any point of time during and hence clause 3(ii)(b) of this order is not
applicable to the company.

3) According to information and explanation given to us and the records examined by us
the company has not made investments in nor provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register required under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to (f) of the order is not
applicable.

4) According to information and explanation given to us and the records examined by us
the company has neither made any investments nor has it given loans or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under section 185 of the Companies Act,2013 ("the
Act") and the company has provided guarantee in respect of the loan taken by the
subsidiary company. Further in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has complied with the provisions of section 185
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and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and
security.

5) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the
records examined by us, the company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which
are deemed to be deposits from the public and accordingly paragraph 3 (v) of the order
is not applicable.

6) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the
records examined by us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by
the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the
activities carried on by the company.

7) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more
than six months from the date on when they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more
than six months from the date on when they become payable.

8) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the
records examined by us, there are no such transactions which are not recorded in the
books of account and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income TaxAct, 1961.

9) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the
records examined by us, the Company has no borrowings from banks, financial
institution, government or by way of debenture . Accordingly para 3(ix)(a) to (f) is not
applicable to the company.

10) (a) Basedupon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or
further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (x) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made private
placement of shares or debenture during the year and hence compliance with the
requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not arise.

1) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, we report that no fraud by the Company or
on the company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no report under sub-Section (12) of Section

91 KAISER CORPORATION



KAISER CORPORATION LTD. THIRTIETH ANMUAL REPORT 2022-2023

12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

(c)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central
Government.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no whistle-blower complaints has been
received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi)(c) of the order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company and accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with section 177 and 188 of the Act. Where applicable, the details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company the company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

The reports on the Internal Auditor of the company for the period under audit has been
considered and taken into consideration. During the period under Audit no adverse
remark were found in the report of the Internal Auditor.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the company is not required to be registered under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (COR)
from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of IndiaAct 1934.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the Company, the Company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the company has no CIC as part of the Group

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the
Financial Year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
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19)

20)

21)

of the records of the company, there has not been any resignation of the statutory
auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, we are of opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, section 135 of the Companies Act is not applicable to the
company, accordingly reporting under clause (xx) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, there have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by
the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of
the companies included in the consolidated financial statements.

For SHABBIR & RITAASSOCIATESLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm"s Registration No. 109420W

Shabbir S Bagasrawala

FPartner

Membership No. 039865

UDIN: 23039865BGWXJ0O5776
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2023
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ANNEXURE B
REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of The
CompaniesAct, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Kaiser Corporation
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the IND AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSILILITY FORINTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company”s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued, by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safequarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

AUDITORS'RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Awuditing, issued by ICAIl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor”s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company”s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company”s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
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company”s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company”s assets that could have a matenial effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future period are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SHABBIR & RITAASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm"s Registration No. 109420W

Shabbir S Bagasrawala

Partner

Membership No. 039865

UDIN: 23039865BGWXJO5776
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2023
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KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

(Rs. in lakhs)

Notes Ag at As al
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
ASSETS
Mon Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 0.02 0.14
Intangible Assets 2 - 0,02
Financial Assets
Investments 3 456.58 454.14
Deferred Tax Asset 4 0.23 Q.51
Total Mon Current Assets 456.83 454.81
Current Asssels
Financial Asseats
Trade Receivable 5 18.44 27.32
Cash and Cash Equivalents G 3T 6.74
Other Current Assats T 549 3.67
Total Current Asseis 29.29 37.73
TOTAL ASSETS 486.13 492.55 |
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 8 526.02 526.02
Other aquity g -52.74 -57.08
Total Equity 473.27 468.93
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 10 - 11.75
Trade payables 11 4.89 3.54
Other financial liabilities 12 450 G.2TF
Other Current Liabilities 13 1.84 1.54
Provisions 14 1.52 0.51
Total Current Liabilities 12.85 23.62
Total Liabilities 12.85 23.62
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 486.13 492 .55

Summary of significant accounting policies

1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

FOR Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg. No. 109420W

Shabbir 5 Bagasrawala
Partner
Membership No. 039865

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30.05.2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Kaiser Corporation Limited

Bhushanlal Arora Rajendra Ramchandra Vaze
Managing Director Director

DIN No. 00416032 DIN No. 02244651

Jdinal Patani Lyla Jamsheed Mehta
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. AG3564
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KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED

STANDALOMNE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

{Fs. i lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Fanicularg i 31.03.2023 31,03.2022
Income from aperations
Revenuea from oparations 15 55.37 57.04
Oiher Income 16 4.39 2.10
Total Income from operations 59.75 59.14
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 17 - 0.43
Furchase of Stock in Trade 18 15.50 14.50
Change in Inventories of Stock in Trade 19 - 0.15
Employee Benafit Expense 20 2588 24 80
Finance Cost 21 0.57 1.26
Depreciation & Amortisation Expensea 22 015 0.24
Other expenses 23 13.23 13.04
Total expenses 55.11 54.42
Profit ! | Loss | before exceptional item and tax 4.65 472
Exceptional tem - -
Profit ! [ Loss ) before tax 4.65 472
Tax expenses
Less:- Current Tax 0.7z -
Addi(Less):.- Earlier Year Tax 067 041
Addi(Less)- Deferred Tax Asset ! (Liability) 0.27 1.01
Add/(Less): Mat Credit {0.72) -
Total Tax expenses 0.95 1.42
Profit / { Loss ) after tax from continuing operation 370 3.30
Other Comprehensive Income net of taxes (OCI)
i} ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss (net of tax) _ .
a) Changes in revaluation surplus = =
b) Remeasurament of the defined benefit gain/(Loss) 0.87 (0.76)
) Equity Instrumeant through other comprahensive income - -
d) Fair Value changes relating to own credit risk - =
a) othar - -
Incame tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 023 )
] )
Other comprehensive income after tax 0.64 (0.T8)
Total Comprehansive Incomel(Loss) for the year (Comprising
Profit and Other Comprehensive Income for the Year) 4.34 2.54
Earnings Per Equity Share of Rs. 1 each
Basic 0.007 0.006
Dilutad 0.007 0.006

As per our report of even date attached

FOR Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Kaiser Corporation Limited
Firm's Reg. No. 109420W

Shabbir 5 Bagasrawala Bhushanlal Arora Rajendra Ramchandra Vaze
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 039865 DIN No. 00418032 DIN Mo, 02244651

Jinal Patani Lyla Jamsheed Mehta
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date : 30.05.2023 Membership No. AG3564
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KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year For the year
Sr, Mo, Particulars ended ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

A |CASH FLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit bafore tax 4 B5 472
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 0.15 0.24
Interest expenses 0.57 1.26
Fair valuation of financial guarantee income (4.18) (1.43)
Intarest on income tax refund (0.13) (0.24)
Excass orovisicn written back - (43)
Intarest on Fixed Depaosits (0.07) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 0.28 412
Mowemeants in working capital:
IncreasedDecrease) in trade payables and other ablities 2m (0LBS)
Increasef{Decreasa) in other financial liahilities 2432 418
Decreased{increasa) in invanlories - 0.30
Decreasef{increase) In trade and other receivables 7.4 [£.43)
Decreasef{increasa) in mvestment {2.39) (4.18)
Decreased{Increase) in other financial assels - 020
Cash generated from / (used in) oparations 10.79 1.34
Diract taxes paid (nat of refunds) - -
MET CASH FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES {A) 10.79 1.34
B |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant & Equipment - (ih.14)
Interest received 0.20 024
Invesiment in Equity Shares [0.05) (.04}
NET CASH (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES {B) 0.15 0.05

€ |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Short term bofrowings (11.75) 1.00
Intarest expenses [0.5T) (1.26)
NET CASH FROM { (USED IN) FINANGING ACTIVITIES (© (2.32) (0.26)

MET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALEMTS | A+B+C ) (1.37) 1.14
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of year 6.74 5.61
Cash and cash equivalant at end of year 5a7 6.74

COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash-in-hand 0.80 047
Balances with banks -
= i curment accounts 3.27 1.78
- in Fixed Deposits 1.50 4.50
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5.37 G.74
Summary of significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

MNotes:
1. Adlfigures in bracket are outflow,
2.  The standalone cash fiow statemants has basn prepared under indirect method as per Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash
Flows

As per our report of even date attached

For Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Kaiser Corporation Limited
Firm's Reg. No. 109420W
Shabbir 5§ Bagasrawala Bhushanlal Arora Rajendra Ramchandra Vaze
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 039865 DIN Mo. 004168032 DIN Mo. 02244651
Jinal Patani Lyla Jamsheed Mehta
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date : 30.05.2023 Membership No. AB3564
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KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

A. Equity share capital

) Amount (In
Particulars Mumber Lakhs)

Balanee as at 1 April 2021
52 621,020 Eguity Shares of Bs. 1 each 52621020 526.21
Less: Calls in arrears (from othars) as at 1 April 2021 - {0.19)
Changes in equily share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 52621020 526.02
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 52621020 526.02

- Other equity {Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Resereve & Surplus Items of OCI Total
Capital Security Retained Remeasurement of
reserve premium earnings net defined benefit
liability/asset

Balance as at 31 March 2021 14.03 7.01 -Td.83 0.18 (53.71)
ProfitiLoss for the pericd - - 330 - 3,30
Less: Taxes of Earlier year - - - - -
Less: Mat credit Enfitlement - - {5.91) - {9.91)
Actuarial gain on defined benefits plan, net of tax - - - (0.7} {0.78)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 14.03 T.01 (77.54) (0.58) (57.08)
Profit for the period - - 4865 - 4.65
Less: Taxes of Earier year - - -0.67 - {1
Less: Mat cradit Entitlemeant - - 0.72 - 1
Actuarial gain on defined benefits plan, net of tax = = = .64 1
Balance as at 31 March 2023 14.03 7.01 (72.85) 0.07 (51.74)
Summary of significant accounling palicias 3

Tha accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statemeants

Az per our report of even date altached

For Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg. No. 1004200

Shabbir § Bagasrawala

Partner
Membership No. 039865

Placa : Mumbai
Dale : 530.05.2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Kaiser Corporation Limited

Bhushanlal Arora

Managing Director

DIN Mo. 00416032

Jinal Patani

Company Secretary

Membership No. AB3564

Rajendra Ramchandra Vaze

Director
DIN Mo, 02244651

Lyla Jamsheed Mehta

Chief Financial Officer
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Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

Mote 2: Property, Plant and Equipment

{Rs_ in lakhs)
Gross Block Depreciation Met Block
Particulars As on - , As on Upteo For the Upte As on As on
01.04.2022 | A0ditions | Deletions | 5 o5 2023 | 01.04.2022 [For the vear assets sold | 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022
Owned Assels
Plant & Machinary 0.12 0.12 a1z 0.00 012 0.00 0.00
Office Equipments 0.50 0.50 0.36 0.12 0.48 0.02 0.14
Furniture & fixure 0.04 = 0.04 0.04 = 0.04 0.0 0.00
Compuber 0.55 - 0.55 .65 - 0.55 0,00 i}.00
Total 1.22 - 1.22 1.07 0.13 1.20 0,02 0.14
Intangible Assets
Software 0.22 0,32 0.29 0,02 0.32 0.00 0.02
Total Current Year 1.53 - 1.53 1.37 0.15 1.51 0.02 017
MNote 3: Investments (Rs. in lakhs)
Paid up As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2022
Particul L i
aptemlany value Mo. of Shares (Rs. ir Mo. of Shares s T io1)
lakhs)
In Equity Instruments Shares - Quoted, fully
paid up
Tata Steel Ltd. Fs. 1 each 20 0.02 3 0.04
BF Utilities Lid. Rs. 10 each 11 0.04 - -
TV18 Broadcast Lid, Rs=. 10 each 67 0.02 - -
In Equity Instruments Shares - Unquoted
Subsidiaries (at cost or deemed cost)
Xicon International Limited Rs. 1 each 17.,08,000 456.49 17,008,000 454.10
Quoted
Aggregate book value B8 0,09 3 0.04
Aggregate market value Ba 0.07 3 0.04
Unquoted
Aggregate carrying value
1,708,000 (as at 31 March 2020: 1,708,000, )
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up in
Total 456.58 454.14
Mote 4: Deferred Tax Asset {Rs. in lakhs)
Particiilars As at March As at March
31,2023 31,2022
Deferred Tax Assets 0.23 0.51
Net Deferred Tax Asset 0.23 0.51
Mote 5: Trade Receivables (Rs. in lakhs)
As at March A= at March
Particulars 31,2023 31,2022
Secured considered Good
Unsecured Considered Good ™ 168.44 27.32
Total 16.44 27.32

** Kindly refer to note to accounts point no 34 "Trade receivable” for ageing
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Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

Mote 6: Cash and Cash Equivalents {Fs. in lakhs)
Partlcilan As at March As at March
31,2023 31,2022
Cash on hand 0.60 0.47
Balances with banks :
In current accounts 3.27 1.78
In deposit accounts” 1.50 4.50
Total 537 6.74
Note 7: Other Current Assets {Rs. in lakhs)
Partlcilars As at March As at March
31,2023 31,2022
Advance for Expense 0.05 0.03
Prepaid Gratuity 221 1.24
MAT Credit Entitlement 0.72 -
TDS 2.37 2.30
Prepaid Expense 0.13 0.10
Total 5.49 3.67
Note 8: Equity Share Capital (Fis. in lakhs)
Paitlcilars As at March As at March
31,2023 31,2022
Authorised Share Capital
100,000,000 Equity shares of Re. 1/- each 1,000.00 1,000.00
(Previous Year 100,000,000 Equity shares of Re. 1/- each)
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up :
5,26,21,020 Equity shares of Re. 1/- each 526.21 526.21
{Previous Year 52,621,020 Equity shares of Re. 1/- each)
less: Call in Arrears 0.19 0.19
526.02 526.02
The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is sel out below:
As at March As at March
Particulars 31,2023 31,2022
{Mo. of Shares) | (Mo. of Shares)
Equity Shares at the beginning 52621020 52621020
of the year
Additions during the year - -
Equity Shares at the end of 52621020 52621020

the year

The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

Name of the Shareholder

As at March 31,2023

As at March 31,2022

Mo. of Shares

MNo. of Shares

Held % holding Held % holding
PASK Holdings Limited THE5000 14.95% T8E5000 14.95%
Amav Enterprises Limited 7700000 14.63% 7700000 14.63%
PRIT Hi-Power Private Limited 5871000 11.16% 5871000 11.16%
H L Rochat Engg Private Limited 5353530 10.17% 5353530 10.17%
Lorance Investments and Trading Limited 12982000 24.67% 12982000 24.67%
Xicon Power Products Limited 4738274 9.01% 4738274 9.01%
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KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED

Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

Note 9: Other equity

(Rs. in Lakhs)

: As at March As at March
Particulars 31,2023 31,2022
Capital Reserve
Capital Reserve 14.03 14.03
Closing Balance 14.03 14.03
Security Premium
Security Premium ¥.01 7.0
Closing Balance 7.01 7.01
Retained earning {78.12) (74.75)
Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit Plans 0.64 {0.76)
Less; Taxes of earlier year - -
Less; Mat Credit Entittement - (5.91)
Add: Current Year profit/{Loss) 3.70 3.30
Total (52.74) (57.08)
Note 10: Current Borrowings (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March As at March
31,2023 31,2022
Unsecured
Loan from Others - 11.75
Total - 11.75
Note 11: Trade Payables (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at March As at March
Particulars 31,2023 31,2022
Dues of micro and small enterprises 0.07 0.08
Other trade payables 4.92 3.47
Total 4.99 3.54

** Kindly refer to note to accounts paint no 33 "Trade Payable" for ageing

{i). The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 20067 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the

Management.

Particulars

As at March
31,2023

As at March
31,2022

{ii) The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as under:

{a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the accounting year

() The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the accounting
year

{c) The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 18, along with the amount of payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

(d) The amount of interest due and payable for the year
(&) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year

{ft The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such
date when the interast dues as above are actually paid

0.07

1.00

0.08

0.14
1.00
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Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

Mote 12: Other Financial Liabilities

(F=. in Lakhs)

pariicidare As at March As at March
31,2023 31,2022
Fair value of financial guarantee obligation 2.39 4.18
Interest Accrued and dus 1.00 1.00
Employee dues payable 1.10 1.08
Total 4.50 6.27
Mote 13: Other Current Liabilities (Fs. in Lakhs)
Bariciliie As at March As at March
31,2023 31,2022
Statutory Dues Payable 1.84 1.54
Total 1.84 1.54
Mote 14: Provisions {Fs. in Lakhs)
As at March As at March
EArticinacs 31,2023 31,2022
Cutstanding Expense Payable 0.15 0.14
Leave encashment 0.42 0.37
Provision for Tax (AY 2023-24) 0.45 -
Total 1.52 0.51
Note 15: Revenue from Operations (Rs. in fakhs)
Badiaaiag Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Sale of products 31.71 34.04
Sale of Services 23.66 23.00
Total 55.37 57.04
Note 16: Other Income {Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Interest income 0.20 0.24
Excess Provision written Back 0.43
Fair Value Gaurantee Income 4.18 1.43
Short Term Capital Gain on Shares 0.00 -
Total 4.39 2.10

Mote 17: Cost of materials consumed

{Rs. in lakhs)

Pariss Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Opening Stock 0.15
Add: Purchases Sics
0.43
Less: Closing Stock i
Total 0.43
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Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

Note 18; Purchase of Stock In trade

(Rs. in lakhs)

B Gia Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Add: Purchases 15.50 14.50
Total 15.50 14.50
Note 19: Changes in Inventory of work in progress/ Stock In Trade (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Closing Stock - -
Less: Opening Stock - (0.15)
Total - {(0.15)
Note 20: Employee benefits expenses (Rs. in lakhs)
Particiiais Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 23.89 23.07
Contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds 1.65 1.61
Staff walfare Expenses 0.12 0.12
Total 25.66 24.80
Note 21: Finance Cost (Rs. in lakhs)
. Year ended Year ended
PArticulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Interest Expenses 0.57 1.26
Total 0.57 1.26
Note 22: Depreciation and Amortisation Expense {Rs. in lakhs)
Barticiiliie Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Depreciation 0.13 0.19
Amortisation 0.02 0.05
Total 0.15 0.24
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Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

Note 23: Other Expenses

(Rs. in lakhs)

Paiticidins Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Printing charges - 013
Punching charges - 0.00
Wooden Punch - 0.03
Other manufacturing expenses - 0.14
Cartage 0.18 0.28
Repairs and maintainence - others 0.23 0.84
Rates and taxes 3.79 3.89
Communication expenses 0.02 0.05
Travelling and conveyance 0.23 0.29
Printing and stationery 0.06 0.05
Advertising and sales promotion 0.93 0.99
Bank charges 0.01 0.01
Legal and professional fees 5.71 4,70
Payment to auditor
- Audit Fees 0.80 1.07
- Others 0.40 0.40
Miscellaneous expenses 0.87 0.19
Total 13.23 13.04
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Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Kaisar Corporation Limited ("lhe Company”) 2 engaged in the business of "Printing of labels and cartons. Magazines and Articles of Stationary” in India. The

Company was incorporaled on 20 Seplember 1923, having s registered office al Unit no-2B83-287 second Neor  F Wing Solaris-l saki vihar road Andhen easl

Mumbai . The Company has one subsidiary namaly, Xicon nlemational Limiled which is engaged in affering Tumkey Projecl Managemenl and Enginesring

SArICRE,

The Standalone inancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 May 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESEMTATION

2.0

2.02

2.03

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention an
fhe accrual basis and on the basis of accounling principle of a going cancermn in accordance wilh generally accepled accounling principbas (GAAP),
Accounting policles have been consistently applled except where a newly Issued accounting standard s initlally adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a chamge in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Ind AS are presented under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Comgpanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant
amendments Rules issued thereafter

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupse and all values are stated in Rs. Lakhs or decimal thersof, except whare otherwise indicated.
Wherever the amount represents ‘0 (zera), valug construes less than Rupeeas five hundresd

Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity of Ind AS reguires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
apphication of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabiliies, the disclosures of contingent assels and contingent liabilities at the dale of
financial statements, income and expenses during the year, Actual results may differ fram these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumplions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the esbmates are revised and in future panods
which are affected,

Application of accounting policies that require crifical accounting estimates and assumplion having the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements ane:

aluabion of financial inslruments

Usedul life of property, plant and equipment
Actuarial gaindass on employes benefit plans
Provisions

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet basad on current! non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or imbended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
= Hedd primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expacted to ba realized within twalve months after the reporting period, or

- Gash or cash couivalent unless restricted from being exchanged o used 1o sellle a liability for at least twehve manths after the reporling period.
Al ather assets are classified as non-currant.

A liability is current whan:

- It is expected io be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the lability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Al gther liabities are classified as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and labdlities
The aperating cycle is the time betwesn the acquisiion of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has

idantified twehre months as its operating cycla.
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Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

204

Recent accounting pronocuncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards. There s no such notification which would heve
besn applicable from 01 April 2020.

Other Changes to Ind AS

Fallowing changes of lind AS have alao become anphcable from financial vear beginning 1 April 2019, However, the adoption of these changes does not
have any impact on the financial staterments as there are no transactions covered under these amendments:

Appendix C 1o Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments fo Ind AS 109 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Amendment o Ind AS 19 — plan amendment, curtailment or setbemant

Amendments o nd AS 28: Long-lerm inlerssts in associales and joint venluras

Amendments 1o ind AS 103 Party to a Joint Arrangements oblains control of a business that iz a Joint Operation

Amendments ta Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements

Amendments 1o Ind AS 12 Income Taxes

Amendments to Ind A5 23 Borrowing Gosts

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

im

3.02

Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and where applicable accumulated impairment losses. Property, plant and
aquipmant cost include axpenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of shelf-constructad assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour and any other costs directly atiributable to bringing the asset io 8 working condition for s intended use, and the costs of dismantiing
and removwing the iterms and resioring the sife on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalized as part of that equipment.

When parts of an ltem of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for a8 separale items (major components) of
properly, plant and aquipmanl

Subsequent Cost
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in lhe carrying amount of the flem if it is probable that the fulure

economic benefits embodied with these will fiow lo the Company and itz coet can be meagswred reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is de-

recognized and charged o the statement of Profit and Loss. All other costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

Depreciation:

Depreciation on property plant & equipments is calculated on straight line metvod over the useful Ife a8 specified by Schedule |l o the Companies Acl,
2013

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of properly, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial yeer end and adjusted
prozoectively, if aopropsiate

Derecognition of assets

An itern of property plant & equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included im the income statement when the asssat is

deracognized,

Intangible assets
Intangible asseis that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, sare measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses, Coslinchedes expenditure thatl is directly attribulable o the acquisition of the intangibhe assel,

Subsequent expenditure
Subseguent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the fulure economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. Al ather

axpendilure, including expandilure on inlemally generated goodwill and brands, ane recognized in profit or loss as incurnad,

Amortrgation of intangible assets with finite useful ves:

Assat class Useful life as per management Amortisation mathod

Compuler sollware & years Amortisation on stralght line basls

Amortsaton methads, useful lives and residual values are reviewed al each reparting date and adjusted If apprognate,

Derecognition of assets
An itern of intangible asset and any significant part initially recognized iz derecognized upon disposal or when na future economic benefits are expectad

from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset ia included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.
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Revenue recognition:

Revenue from confracts with customer is recognised when contral of the goods or services are transferred 1o the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects 1o be antithed in exchange for those goods or sarvices

Ind AS 115 "Revenue from confracts with Customers” provides a control-based revenue recognition model and provides a five step application approach o
be followed for revenue recognition.

A) ientify the contract(s) with customer;

B) Kenlify the parformance obligations;

) Detarmine the ransaction price;

) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;

E)} Racognise revenue when of as an entity satisfies performance obligation

Revenue from eperations:
Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised net of indirect taxes.

Consultancy Incone
Revenue from consultancy incoma ig recognised over 8 paniod of time.

Other incomae:

Interest income

Under Ind AS104, Inlerest incoma s recognisad by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amaunt of financial assels olher Lhan
credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured at fair value through Profit and loss (FYTPL)

Financial guarantee

Income

Financial guarantee income is recognised on straight line basis over pariod of guarantea.

Inventories:

Inventories are valued at weighted average method or net realizable value whichever is lower. Obsolete, defective and unserviceable stocks are provided
for, whenever reguined.

Woark In process Includes material cost, cost of conversion and oiher costs Incurred In bringing them o thelr present location and condition.

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
1o maka lhe sale.

Ratirement benefits:

Defined contribution plan (Provident Fund):

In accordance with Indian Law, eligible empoloyees receive benefits from Provident Fund, which Iz defined confribution plen. Both the employes snd
amployer make monthly contributions to the plan, which iz adminisirated by the Governmant authorities, each aqual lo the specific perceniage of
employes's basic salary, The Company has no further abligation under the plan beyond its moanthly contributions, Obligation for contributions 1o the plan is
recogrized as an amployes benefit expensa in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurrad.

Dafined benefit plans:

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit plan namely Gratuity for all its employees in the form of Group Gratuity -cum- Life Assurance Scheme, The liability for
the defined benelil is determined on the basis of valuation made under he scheme al year end, which is calculated using the projected unil credil methcd.
Gains and losses through remeasurement of the defined benefils obligations is reflected in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other
comprebensive income [n the perod in which they occur. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income 18 refliected immaediately In retained
eamings and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

Short term benefits

Shart term employves benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed a3 a related service provided, A liahility is recognized
far the amount expected to be paid under shor term cash bonus of profil sharing plans if the Company has a presant legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employes and the obligation can be estimated reliably
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¢) Leave encashment

The employees of the Company are entitled ta leave as per the leave policy of the Company. The lkability in respect of unutilized leave balances is provided
at the end of wear and charged fo the statement of profit and loss.

d) Code on Social Security, 2020

The Indian Pardiament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the confributions by the company fowards Provident Fund and
Gratuity. The Ministry of Labowr and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited
suggestions from stakeholdars which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company and its Indian subsidiaries will assess the impact and ils
avalualion once the subject rules are nolified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective
and thea ralated rules to dedarming the financial impacl are published,

3.07 Accounting for taxes on income:

I} Current income tax
Current income t8x assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from ar paid to the taxation authonties, The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company operaies and generates taxable income.

Currant income taxes sre recognized in profit or loss except to the extant that the tax relates io items recognized outside profit or loss, either in olher
comprehensive income of direclly in equity. Management periedically evaluales position taken in the tex returns with respect to siluations in which
applicable tax regulations are subjected to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income oy assets and labilites are recognized for all temporary differences between the tex bases of assets and Mabilities and thelr carrying
amounts in the financial statements.

The carmrying amount of defarred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be ulilized. Unrecognized deferred lax assels sre re-assessed al each
reporting date and are recognized to the exient that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and Habilies are measured &t the tex rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the lability is setiled or the Asset realized,
basad an fax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tex consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects. at the reporiing date, 1o recover or setile the
carrying amount of its assebs and liabilities.

Deferred income tax assels |s recognized to the extent that [t Is probable that future taxable prafit will be available against which the decuctible temoorany
differences and tax loss can be utilized

Dreferrad lax assets and liabllties are offset when there i5 a legally enforceables right to sef off current tax assets against current fax liabilties and when they
relate o income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company inlends to selile its current tax assets and Kabilibes on a net basis.

Iy The Minimum Altermative Tax (MAT) credit ks recognized as an assat only when and to he extent there [5 convingng evidence that the Campany will pay
normal Income tax during the specified perod. In the year in which the Minimum Alternative Tex (MAT) credit becomes eligible o be recognized as an
asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by
way of a credit to the staterment of profit and loas and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and
writes down ihe carrying amount of MAT Credit Entiflemant io the extent there i no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay
naormal income tax during the specified paricd.

3.08 Lease:
As a lessae:
The C:‘:II'I‘IFIEH‘I}' evaluates il an an‘angamant gualifies 1o be a lease as pesr (lg:] r&quimmanls af Ind AS 116, Menliication of & lease raquiras signirn:anl:
judgment. The Company uses significant judgment in assessing the lease lerm (including anticipated renewals) and he applicable discount rale,

The Company determings the lease term a3 the non-cancellable percd of @ lease, logether with both penods covered by an oplicn to extend the lease if
the Company is reascnably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option o terminate the lease If the Company is reasonably certabn nof
to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or nat to exercise an aption to
terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the oplion to extend the
lease, or not o exercise the oplion to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a leasea.
The discount rate is gensrally basad on the bomowing rate speacific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

3.08 Impairment of assets:

Financial assets

The Company recognizes 085 allowances using the expected credil logs (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or
less. Loss allowance for rade recelvables with no significant financing component ls measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial
assels, expactad credit losses are measured at an amount egual to the 12-month ECL, unless there hae been a significant increase in credit gk from iniial
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit lossea [or reversal) that ks required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairmeant gain or boss in the Statement of profit or loss.
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Mon-financial asgets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An assefs recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and ils value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset. unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets,

If such assats are considered lo be impaired, the impairment lo be recognized in the Statement of Profit end Losa is measured by the amount by which the
carrying value of the assels axcesds the estimated recoverable amount of ihe assel An impairment lees is reversad in the statement of profit and lass if
there hae been a change in the estimales used to determine the recoverable amount The carrying amount of the assel is increased o ils revised
recoverable amount, provided that Ihis amount does mol excesd (hé carrying amount that would have been datarminad (net of amy accumulated
amaortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior yaars.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized wihen the Company hag a present obligation (legal or consineclive) as a resull of a past evenl, it s probable that an outflow of
resaurces embodying economic benelits will be reauired 1o setile the obligation and & reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, When
fhe Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for examole, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separale assel, bul anly when the reimbursement s virally cerain, The expense relating to a provision s presented in the statement of profil and lass nel
of any reimbursament.

If the effect of the lime valus of money & material, provisions are discounted wsing a current pra-tax rals that reflects, whan appropriate, the risks specific to
the liabilidy. When discounting is used, the increass in the provision due fo the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,

A contingant llabllity is a possible obligation that anses from past events whose existencs will ke confirmed by the ccourmence of non-ocourrencs of one or
more uncertain future avents beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that I nol recognized bacause It g not probable that an cutflow of
resources will be reauvired to sellle the obligation, A contingent Nabdity alag arises In extremely rare cases where there I8 a lability that cannot be
recognized because It cannot be measured relably. The contingent labdlity I3 nol recognized In books of accoumt but its existence s disclosed In financial
staterments.

A cantingent assels, where an Inflow of econamic benefits I8 probable, an entity shall dsclose & brlel description of the nature of the contingent assets at
the and of the reporting perlod, and, where practicable, Bn estimate of thelr inancal effect, measured uging the princoles set out for provisions n Ind AS
10,

Fair value measurement

Fair valuwe is the pricé that would be recsived o ssll an assat or paid to transfer a liabilly in an ordary transachon bebween market participants at the
measurament date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sall the asset or fransfer the liability takes place eithar:

In the principal market for the asset or liahility, or

In the absance of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal of the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Cnmpan',-.

The fair value of an asset or a liability s measured using the assumotions that markel participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market particapants act in thelr economic best interest

A fair value measurement of 8 non-financial assel takes inle account 2 markel parlicipant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in ile
highest and best use or by selling it to anather market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best usa.

The Company uses valuatan techniques that are appropriate In the circumstances and for which sufficent data are available to measure falr value,
maximizing the use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimizing the wse of unobservable Inputs.

Al assets and liabilities for which falr value Iz measured of disclosed in the financal statements are categonzed within the falr valus hierarchy, described ag
follows, based on the lowest level inoul that is significant te the fair value measurement as a whale:

Levvel 1 - Qualed [unadjusted) markal prices in active markels Tor identical assels or liakilitias

Leval 2 < Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that s significant 1o the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observabhe

Leweal 3 - Valuation techniguas for which the lowesl level input that is significant to the fair values
maasurament is unobservable

For assets and llabilities that are recognized In the financal statements on a recurmng basks, the Company determines whether ransfers have ocourred
between levels n the hierarchy by re-assessing categorizaton (based on the lowest level input that |s significant ta the falr value measurement a3 a8 whale)
at thie &g of each reporting perod.

The Company’s Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurming fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and
unquated financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recuring measurement, such a8 asaets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

Al each reporiing date, the Management analyses the moverments in The valees of assels and labililies which are required o be remeasured of re-
assessed as par lhe Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, Ihe Management verilies (e major inputs applied in the lalest valuation by agresing
the infarrmation in e valuation computation lo confracts and olber relevant documents.

The Management algo compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is
reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks
of the assat or liahility and the leveal of the fair valus hierarchy as explained above.
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312 Financial instruments
Financial assels

Financial assats are recognised when the Company betomes a parly to the contracteal provisions of the instrument.

On initial recogniton, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss
{FYTPL}), its transaction cost afe recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are altributed to the acquisition value of
the financial asset,

Financial =assets are

Amaortised cost: Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objectve is o hold financial assats in order to collect contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interast, are subsequaently measured al amortised cost wesing the effective interest male 'EIR') method less
imgainment, If any. The amartizabion of EIR and loss ansing from Impalment, if any s recognized in the Staternent of Profit and Loss,

Fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL): A financial asset noi classified as either amortised cost or FYOC), is classified as FVTPL. Such financial
assals amm maasured at fair value with il changas  in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as ‘other income’ in the
Statement of Profit and Loss,

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FWOCI): Financial assels thal are hedd within a business model whose objective is achieved by bath,
sedling financial assels and collecting conlraciual cash Tlows thal are solely payments ol principal and interesl, are subseaguently measured al RRir value
through ather comprehensive income. Falr value movements are recognized In the other comprehensive income (DC), Interest income measured using
the EIR method and impairment losses, i any are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OC| is reclassified from the equity fo 'other income’ in the Staterment of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets ars not reclassified subsequent lo their recognition, excepl if and in tha period the Company changes its business model for managing
firancial assels

Trade Receivables and Loans:
Trade receivables arme inilially recognized at fair value. Subsequantly, thess assets are held at amortised cost, using the effective inlerest rate (EIR) mathod
net of any expected credit lesses, The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated fulure cagh income through the expected life of financial instrement

Debt Instruments:

Debt instruments are mitially measured at amortised cost, fsir value through ofher comprehensive income ('FWOCI) or fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) till derecognition on the basis of () the enlily’s business model for managing the financial assels and (i) the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financlal asset

{a] Measured at amortised cost: Financial asseis that are held within @ business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows that sre solely payments of principal and interest, are subseguently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest rate
{EIR) mathod less impairment, if any, The amaortisation of EIR and loss ansing from impairment, if any is recognised in the Statement of Prafit and Loss

{b] Measured at falr value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets that are held within a8 businese model whose objective is achieved by
both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subseguently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive incoma. Fair value movements amé recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured
uging the EIR method and impairment losses, If any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised im OCI is reclassified from the equity to 'other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loas.

i) Measured at fair value through profit or loss: & financial assat not classified as sither amortised cost or FWOC), is classified aa FYTPL. Such financial
assets are measured at Tair valuse with ell changas  in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘other income’ in the
Statemeant of Profit and Lass,

Equity Instruments:
All investments in eguity instruments classified under financial assets are mitially measured at fair value |, the Company may, on initial recognition,
irrevocably slect to measure the same either at FVOCT or FYTPL.

The Coampany makes such lection an an instrument-by-instrument basis, Falr value changes on an equity instrument 15 recognised as cther income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has electad to measure such instrument at FYOC. Fair welue changes excluding dividends, on an equity
imstrumant measuwred at FYOCI are recognised in OCL Amounts recognised in OC| are nol subsequently reclassified o the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Dividend income an he investiments in eguity instrumenls are recognised as 'olher income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition
The Company deracognizes a financial asset when fthe contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual
rights 1o receive the cash flows from the asset,

Financial Liabilitias:

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial labilities are recognized when fhe Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of thé instrument. Financial Babiibes are initally
measured at the amortised cost unless al initial recognition, they are classified as falr value through profit and loss. Al financial liabilities are recognised
Initially gt fair value and in the case of borrowings, trade payabdes and other financial liabllities, net af directly attributable tranzaction costs, The Company's
financial Kabiliies include borrowings, trade payables and other financial labilities.
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Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cast using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carmied at fair velue through profit or loge are
measurad at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

{a) Borrowings: Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemotion amount is recogniged In the Statement of Profit end Loss over the
period of the borrowings using the EIR method. Feea paid on the establishment of loan facilibes are recognised as transaction cosis of the lean to the
extant that it is probahble that some or il of the facility will be drawn down, In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To fhe extent there is
ne avidence that it is probable thal some o all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee 5 capitalised as a prepayment for liguidity services and amortsed
over the period of tha facility to which it relates.

(b} Trade and Other Payables:

Thesa amounis reprasent liabilities for goods and services provided lo the Company prior o the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other
payabdes arg presented as current liabiliies unless payment is not dug within 12 months after the reporting pericd. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

{c) Financlal Guarantee Obligations:

Thie fair value of financial guarant=es is determined as the present value of the differance in net cash flows betweean the contraciual payments under the
debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated ameunt that would be payable to & thind party for
assuming the obligations. Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates are provided for ne
compensation, the fair values as on the date of transition are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the equity invesiment.

Derecognition

& financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the confract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial lability is replaced by another fram the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange of modification i treated as the derecognition of the ofiginal llabdity and the recognition of a new Rability.

Thie difference in the respective carrying amounts is recagnizad in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Offsetting Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enfarceable right to offset the
racogrised amaunts end there i an intention 1o seftle an a net basis or realise the asset and settle the labdity simultaneawsly. The legally enforceabsle right
must nat ke contingant an future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the Company or the counterparty.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments In subsiciaries are carned al cost less accumulated impairment losses, If any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carmying amount of
the investment is assassed and writben down immediately ta ils recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, lhe difference betwsen nel
disposal proceeds and carmying amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheel comprise cash al banks and on hand and shorl-lerm deposils which are subject o an insignil‘ican! risk af
changes in value,

Far the purpose of the statement of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, ae defined above, as they are
considered an integral part of the Company's cash managamenL

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share s computed by dividing the net profit for the perled atiributable to the equity shareholders of the Company by the welghted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the panod and for all
pericds presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that heve changed the number of
equity shares autstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Far the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the period Is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential eqguity shares.

Segment Reporting:
Based on "Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chlef Operating Declsion Maker evaluates the Company's
parformance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various parformance indicators by business segments.

Segment Policies:

The Company prepares Its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparnng and presenting the financial statements of
tha Company as a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis.
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Contingent liabilities

The Company has providad corporate guarant@es to lending banks on bahalf of its subsidiary Company. As on Balance Shoat date,
the subsidiary has drawn an amount of Rs, 1289 80 laks (PY Rs. 516.85 lakhs) from the lending Banks.

Capital Commitment
The Company does not have any capital commitermnent as at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: Nil).

Related party disclosures

Related party relationships:

Subsidiary Company Xicon International Limited

Mr.Bhushanlal Arora (Managing Director)
Mrs Jinal Patani (Company Secratary)
Mrs, Lyla Jamsheed Mehta (Chief Financial Officer)

Key management personne|

Motes:
The relationships as mentioned above pertain to those related parties with whom transactions have taken
place during the yvear.

Related party relationships hawve been determined on the basis of the requirement of the Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-24 "Related Party Disclosure™ and the same have been identified by the

management relied upon by the auditors.

Transactions with related parties:

Disclosure in relation to fransaction with related parties

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Director's remuneration

Bhushanlal Arora 18.18 17.62

Remuneration paid to KMP other than Director

Miss Jinal Patani (Company Secretary) 2.59

Mr. Priyanka Charturvedi (G5 Previous Year) 2.5

Sales of goods

Xicon International Limited” 7.03 4.26

Consultancy income from Subsidiary

Kigon Intemational Limited” 12.00 13.00
39.81 37.38

“Excluding GST

Balances with related parties:

(R, In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Investment in Equity Shares
Xicon Intemational Limited 455684 454.10
455.84 454.10

113 KAISER CORFORATION




KAISER CORPORATION LTD. THIRTIETH ANMUAL REPORT 2022-2023

KAISER CORPORATION LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

27 Segmental Information
The Board of Directors of the Company collectively has been identified as the Chisf Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined

by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an
analysis of various performance indicators by industry classes. Accordingly, segment information has been presented for industry
classes. The Company operates in a single business and geographical segment viz. Printing of labels, packaging matenals,
Magazines and articles of siationery within India. Accordingly, no separate disclosures for primary business and secondary

peoqraphical segment are required,

28 Ratio
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current Assets
Inventarias - =
Trade Receivable 18.44 27 32
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5.37 6.74
Other Financial assets - -
Other Current Assels 5.49 3.67
Current Assets (A) 29.29 3773
Current Liabilities
Borrowings - 11.75
Trade pavables 4.89 3.54
Other financial liabilities 4.50 6.27
Other Current Liabilities 1.84 1.54
Provisions 1.52 0.51
Current Liabilities (B) 12.85 23.62
Current Ratio (Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 2.28 1.60
Debt- Equity Ratio
Debt! Equity Capital - 0.03
Debt Services Coverage Ratio
Met Profit before Taxes 4 65 472
Depreciation 0.15 0.24
Met Operating Incomes 4,79 4,96
Debt Services Coverage Ratio - 0.42
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Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Inventory Turnover Ratio

Inventory - -
Turnover 55.37 57.04
Inventory Turnover Ration - -
Trade receivables Turnover Ratio 3.00 2.09
([ Tumover/Debtors )
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 11.10 16.10
(Turnover/Creditors)
Met Capital Turnover ratio 0.1 0.11
| Total Sales/ Equity Share Capital)
Net Profit Ratio 0.07 0.06
(Net Profit after Tax' Turnover )
Return On Capital Employed
Earning before Interest and tax 5.36 6.22
Total Equity 47327 468.93
Return on Capital Employed 0.01 0.01
([ EBITS Total Equity)
Shareholding of Promotears

Share Held by Promoters at the end of the year % Change during the

year

Promoter Name Mo of Shares % of Total Shares
PASK Holdin s Limited TRES000 14.95% 0
Amav Enterpfises Limited 7700000 14.63% 0
PRIT Hi-Power Private Limited 5871000 11.16% 0
H L Rochat Engg Private Limited 5353530 10.17% Q
Parsiana Publications Pyt Ltd 2362000 4.49% 0
Veera Patel 30040 0.06% 4]
Jehangir Patel 29010 0.08% 0
Lyla Mehta 3000 0.01% 0
Taotal 20213550 55.53%
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30 Retirement benefits
a} (a) Defined contribution plan

The following amount recognized as an expense in Statement of profit and loss on account of provident fund and other
funds. Thera are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authoritios.

(R=. In Lakhs)

Particul Year ended Year ended
articulars 31 March 2023 31 March 20222
Contribution to provident fund and other defined contribution funds 1.65 1.61

kY The Company has a defined benefit plan namely Gratuity for all its employees in the form of Group Gratuity -cum- Life
Assurance Scheme. The liability for the defined benefit is determined on the basis of valuation made under the scheme at
vear end, which is calculated using the projected unit credit method.

The retirement benefit obligations recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligations as adjusted for unrecognized past service cosl,

The following table sets out the funded status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognized in the Company’s financial

statements as at 31 March 2023.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Paitiiis Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Change in present value of obligation
Present value of obligation as at 1 April 11.80 10,92
Interest cost 0.86 0.79
Service cost 0.11 0.11
Benefits paid - (0.68)
Actuarial {gain)/loss on obligation (0.87) 0.76
Present value of obligation as at 31 March 12.00 11.89
Reconciliation of plan assets
Plan assets as at beginning of the year 13.14 12.82
Expected return on plan assets 0.897 0.80
Contributions during the year - -
Adjustment 0.10 Q.10
Benefils paid - 0.68
Actuarial {gains) losses - -
Plan assets as at the end of the year 14.21 13.14
Amount recegnised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of obligation, as at 31 March 12.00 11.89
Fair value of plan assets as at 31 March 14.21 13.14
Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet (2.21) (1.24)
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Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 0.1 0.11
Interest cost 0.86 0.79
Expected return on plan assets (0.97) (0.90)
{0.00) (0.00)
Total expense charged to profit and loss account [before tax] [A]
Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Remeasurement during the period due to :
(0.87) 0.76
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions
Actuarial loss [ (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes
Amount recognised in OCI [before tax] [B] (0.87) 0.76
(0.87) 0.76
Closing amount recognised in OCl and profit and loss [A+B]
Net liability is bifurcated as follows :
Current (2.21) (1.24)
Nan-current - -
Net liability {2.21) (1.24)
Actuarial assumptions used in calculations of gratuity is as under:
Particulars Aot o
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.3% 7.3%
Expected return on plan assets 7.80% 7.80%
Expected rate of salary increase 5% 5%
L 1-3% depending on | 1-3% depending on
Aftriation rate age age
i LIC {2006-08) LIC {(2006-08) Ultimate
Mortality Ultimate
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Financial instruments- Fair values and risk managemant

The carying value and fair value of financial instruments by categones as of March 2023 are as follows ©

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars At amortised | At fair value At fair value | Total carrying | Total fair value
costs through profit | through OCI value
and loss
Assets
Trade receivables 1844 - - 18.44 18.44
Cash and cash equivalents 537 - - 537 537
Other current financial assels 5.49 - - 549 5.49
29.29 - - 29,29 29.29
Liabilities
Short term bomowings - - -
Trade payables 4.99 - - 4.59 4,99
Cther current financial liabilities 7.86 - - 786 7.86
12.85 - - 12.85 12,85
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categones as of 31 March 2022 are as follows :
{Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars At amortised At fair value At fair value | Total carrying Total fair
costs through profit | through OCI value value
and loss
Asszels
Trade receivables 27.32 - 2732 2y.az
Cash and cash equivalents 6.74 - 674 6.74
Other current financial assets 367 - 3.67 367
3773 - 37.73 3773
Liabilities
Short term Bommowings 11.7% 11.75 11.75
Trade payables 3.54 - - as54 3,54
Other current financial liabilities B.az - - 8.32 8.32
23.62 - - 23.62 23.62

Tha fair valuas of the financial assets and financial liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current

fransaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale.

Earnings Per Share

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
MNet profit after tax available for equity share holders for 370 3.30
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 52621020 52621020
Face value of share (Rs.) 1.00 1.00
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 0.007 0,006

Trade Payable for the year ended 31st March 2023

O/s for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less Than |One to two year| Two to | More than Total
one year Three Three
Years Years
1. MEME 0.07 - - - 0.07
2. Others 4.92 - - - 4.92
3. Disputed Dues- MSME - - E 3 E
4. Disputed Dues- Others - - E 2 =
Total 4.99 - - - 4.99
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Trade Payable for the year ended 31st March 2022

O/s for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less Than |One to two year| Two to | More than Total
one year Three Three
Years Years
1. MSME 0.08 - - - 0.08
2. Others 347 - - - 3.47
3. Disputed Dues- MSME - & - 5 5
4. Disputed Dues- Others E = g 5 B
Total 3.54 - - - 3.54

Trade Receivable for the year ended 31st March 2023

Ofs for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less Than |One to two year| Two to | More than Total
one year Three Three
Years Years
1. Undisputed Trade Raceivable considerad goods 18.44 - - - 18.44
2. Undisputed Trade Receivable considered Doubtful - - - - -
3. Disputed Trade Receivable considerad goods - - - - =
4, Disputed Trade Receivable considered Doubtful - - - 5 -
Total 18.44 - - - 18.44

Trade Receivable for the year ended 31st March 2022

Particulars Ofs for fellowing periods from due date of payment
Less Than |(One to two year| Two to | More than Total
one year Three Three
Years Years
1. Undisputed Trade Receivable considered goods 15.96 11.36 - - 27.32
2. Undisputed Trade Receivable considered Doubtful - = = = =
3. Disputed Trade Receivable considered goods - - - - -
4. Disputed Trade Receivable considered Doubtful - - - - -
Total 15.96 11.36 - - 27.32

Critical accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainties

The preparation of the financial statermants requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures including the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a ongoing basis They are based on historical
experence and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and thal are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that pericd, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Detailed information about each of these estimates, assumptions and judgements is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of caloulation for each affected line iterm of financial statements. However, the following are the key
assumplions and other key sources of estimation uncertainty concerning the fulure, at the end of the reporting year that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial years.

(i} Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting year. The financial
effect of this reassessment, assuming the assets are held uniil the end of their estimated useful lives, is an increase/dacrease the
depreciation expense in the current financial year and future years.

(ii) Estimation of defined benefit obligation:

The cost of defined benefits plan including other post employment benefits and the present value of such obligations are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate, Due to the
complaxities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All the assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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iii) Impairment of non-finanical assets:
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. |tis determined for an individual
assel, unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of asssls,
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceads its recoverable amount, the asset is considerad impaired and is written down to its

recoverable amount.

iv) Impairment of financial assets:
The impairment proavisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expecied loss rates. The
Company uwsed judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

In the opinlon of managemeant, trade receivables and other financial assels have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of business
at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet. The provision for depreciation and all known liabiliies is
adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably stated.

Code on Social Security, 2020:

The Indian Padiament has approved the Code on Socal Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the Company towards
Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on
Movember 13, 2020, and haz invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company
will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are nofified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in
the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules o determine the financial impact are publishad,

There was no impairment loss on the flxed assets on the basis of review caried out by the management in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS)=36 'Impairment of Assats’.

Management has conducted the physical verification of Inventories and provide the management representation for the same. The
company has not laken any credil facilities from bank.

The company has nol done any transaction with companies struck off under saction 248 Companies Act 2013,

Az per the management and those charge with the Goverance has given declaration that the company is not declared wilful defaulter by
any bank or financial instutuion or ather lender.

Events after the end of the reporting date
Mo subsequent event has been observed which may required an adjustment to the statement of financial position,

Pravious years' figures have been regroupead / rearranged, wharaver necessary to conform to the current yvear's presentation.
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